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Ambac Financial Group, Inc., headquartered in New York City, is a holding company
whose affiliates provide financial guarantees and financial services to clients in both the public
and private sectors around the world. Ambac’s principal operating subsidiary, Ambac Assurance
Corporation, is a leading guarantor of public and structured finance obligations. It has earned triple-A
ratings, the highest ratings available, from Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s Ratings
Services, Fitch, Inc. and Rating and Investment Information, Inc.
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For more than 30 years, Ambac Financial Group, Inc. has strengthened bond issues with its triple-A-
rated financial guarantee insurance, the highest ratings available. A triple-A rating lowers overall
financing costs and smoothes the way for a successful issue, broadening the potential investor base.
When we back a bond, we provide an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee that investors will
receive all interest and principal payments in full and on time. If an issue is “Ambacked,” we pay if the
issuer doesn't.
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- e — innovative solutions, and execute transactions smoothly distin-
: _ .—_ T — guishes our professionals as among the best in the financial
;._—-_- tw e services industry. For each assignment, we quickly assemble a

team with the diverse skills and specialized expertise needed to
generate creative yet practical and cost-effective ways to access
capital and get the deal done.
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Ambac’s triple-A-rated insurance promise draws its strength
from the company’s solid financial position. Our stringent
underwriting standards and zealous risk management form the
foundation for Ambac’s valuable guarantee. Claims-paying
resources that exceed $8 billion combined with steady results
help keep our top ratings secure. For every financing we insure,
Ambac delivers financial peace of mind.
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10-YEAR PERFORMANCE

Return on Equity:
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1 Return on equity is defined as net income excluding realized gains/losses divided by average stockholders’ equity, exclusive of unrealized

gains/losses on the investment portfolio.

2 Expense ratio is computed as financial guarantee underwriting and operating expenses divided by net premiums earned and other credit
enhancement fees.




Ambac Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHTS
Gross premiums written
Net premiums earned and other credit enhancement fees
Net investment income
Interest income from investment and payment agreements
Financial services - other revenue
Total revenue
Losses and loss adjustment expenses
Financial guarantee underwriting and operating expenses
Interest expense from investment and payment agreements
Financial services - other expenses
Interest expense
Net income
Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted
Return on equity®
Return on equity?
Cash dividends declared per common share

BALANCE SHEET HIGHLIGHTS

Total investments, at fair value

Prepaid reinsurance

Total assets

Unearned premiums

Losses and loss adjustment expense reserve

Obligations under investment agreements, investment repurchase
agreements and payment agreements

Debentures

Total stockholders’ equity

1 Defined as net income divided by average stockholders’ equity.

2 Defined as net income excluding realized gains/losses divided by average stockholders’
equity, exclusive of unrealized gains/losses on the investment portfolio.

$ 12,5393
296.1
15,355.5
2,128.8
1721

7,282.9
616.7
3,625.2

2001 2000
$ 6833 $ 4831
400.4 323.4
267.8 241.0
249.9 303.2
37.8 425
960.4 904.3
20.0 15.0
68.0 55.2
2354 283.0
218 24.8
40.4 375
432.9 366.2
4.10 3.49
3.97 341
15.5% 15.9%
15.9% 15.6%
0.340 0.307
$ 10,287.9 $ 83239
267.7 242.6
12,339.5 10,120.2
1,780.3 1,546.3
151.1 1324
5511.9 4,892.9
619.3 4241
2,983.7 2,596.1
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W' h caution and economic uncertainty characterizing much
It of 2002, Ambac Financial Group’s primary strengths—
insightful credit analysis, comprehensive risk management and our triple-A-
rated financial guarantee — proved highly valuable to issuers, investors and
corporate clients. As a result, our company once again delivered record operat-

ing results for the year, including an industry-leading return on equity of 15.7%
and new levels of performance in virtually all our major businesses.

For the year 2002, Ambac reported growth in normal premiums earned
of 24% while adjusted gross premiums written increased 33% to $1,299 mil-
lion. Normal premiums earned excludes the impact of refundings on premiums
earned. Adjusted gross premiums written quantifies today the value of premiums
expected to be earned in the future. During 2002, we added an additional $773
million to the value of premiums estimated to be earned in the future. This
estimated future premium revenue stream now totals more than $3.6 billion.

These strong results were not reflected in our stock price, which ended
the year down 3% from the prior year. While disappointing, this was a respect-
able relative performance in a difficult market climate that saw the S&P 500
decline by 22%. We remain proud of Ambac’s long-term total shareholder
return of 90% for the past five years versus a negative 3% for the S&P 500.
Since going public in 1991, Ambac’s total return to shareholders equals 782%
versus 187% for the S&P 500.



A Robust Municipal Bond Market: Low interest rates and critical
infrastructure needs fueled record issuance in the U.S. municipal bond market
in 2002. At the same time, stresses to the economy and increased wariness
among investors helped underscore the value of Ambac’s financial guarantee
product, creating high demand for our services and an attractive pricing envi-
ronment. With state and local governments confronting budget shortfalls while
managing the need to pursue infrastructure projects, Ambac's skills and expertise
helped issuers develop creative solutions and execute successful financings.

Our ongoing strategy of infusing project and structured finance experts
into Ambac’s public finance teams continues to enrich results — for our clients
and our company. In 2002, more than 40% of the premiums Ambac wrote in the
public finance sector came from more complex project finance deals or those
representing extensive partnering between the public and private sectors. We
anticipate strong, continuing demand for Ambac’s problem-solving skills as
governments and their authorities seek alternative ways to access capital
efficiently. Similarly, investors” healthy appetite for the financial peace of mind
that Ambac-insured bonds provide will help fortify our ongoing business results.

The culture of teamwork, consistently reinforced within the Ambac
organization, also yielded opportunities to assist clients using our financial
services products. Throughout 2002, we made significant advances in cross-
selling interest rate swaps and investment agreements to issuers in both the
domestic and international markets.

An Expanded Structured Finance Reach: Ambac's structured
finance areas delivered impressive results in 2002. Our consumer asset-backed
securities business continued to be a consistent performer, thanks in part, to
Ambac's reputation for efficient and excellent execution. As aservice to investors,
Ambac lists all of its consumer asset-backed transactions on its web site. The
transactions, along with the underlying credit ratings, are updated quarterly.

During the year we took further steps to expand the range of securi-
tized asset types we guarantee. Broad industry recognition of the value Ambac
brings to mortgage-backed securitizations enabled us to penetrate the growing
auto loan securitization sector. Ambac’s high-quality reputation greatly facili-
tates this expansion.

The credit derivatives sector remains an active arena for Ambac. While
the growing use of collateralized debt obligations (CDOs) has increased awareness
of the risks that accompany these transactions, we remain firmly committed to
this market. We have confidence in the extensive skill and experience of our CDO
team and in the rigorous methodologies we use to analyze and monitor our



exposures in this arena. We believe the returns on risk-adjusted capital in our
credit derivatives business will continue to be attractive.

A Strong Pipeline of International Transactions: In international
markets, use of financial guarantees continues to expand. Many of these
assignments arise from government privatization efforts that, by necessity,
require many months of development and transaction structuring. Frankly, our
international results for 2002 did not meet our expectations. That being said,
our pipeline of deals currently in progress is very strong and we anticipate
continued attractive growth, particularly in Europe.

We have extended our reach to the Asia-Pacific region as well. In
Australia, a small but growing market for us, we pursue business in attractive
niches, such as utilities. Our business in Japan targets the consumer finance
sector, a significant market where we are the leading financial guarantor.

A Focus on Risk Management: The most critical component of our
business is analyzing, assessing and managing risk — for issuing clients, for
investors and for Ambac’s own portfolio. During the year we fortified our
already strong risk management expertise and capabilities with investments in
systems, technology and people. We enhanced the frequency and depth of
portfolio models, with particular emphasis on staying ahead of growth in the
newer areas of collateralized bond and debt obligations.

Risk management excellence will continue to be a hallmark for the
Ambac organization. Our most senior professionals, with expertise across the
full range of our businesses, comprise the Portfolio Risk Management
Committee, constantly monitoring the risk exposure of each individual sector as
well as Ambac’s total portfolio. In addition to stringent underwriting standards
and sector limits, we maintain surveillance of all credits in the portfolio and are
quick to become actively involved in remediation efforts when difficult situa-
tions arise.

A major disappointment occurred late in the year — a $91 million
after-tax writedown in our $12.5 billion investment portfolio, representing
National Century Financial Enterprises asset-backed securities. These uninsured
securities were triple-A rated three weeks prior to writedown. We fully intend
to pursue all available avenues to optimize potential recoveries.

Increased Teamwork, Meaningful Results: Throughout all our
businesses and our risk management activities as well, a great portion of
our success can be attributed to the effective teamwork, cooperation and
knowledge-sharing that takes place everyday among Ambac professionals. Our
business model — a significant amount of capital deployed effectively by a
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Ambac delivers financial peace
of mind to issuers, investors and
shareholders through its triple-A
rating and consistent financial
results. The strength behind
Ambac's guarantee includes
high-quality, diversified port-
folios of both investments and

guaranteed bonds.
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relatively small group of talented people — thrives because of the constructive
interaction that leverages expertise throughout our organization.

In the past few years we have worked to broaden the skill sets of our
professional staff, an effort that continues to result in mandates for complex
and high-value transactions. The economic uncertainty that prevailed through-
out 2002 provided unique opportunities to add talented professionals to the
Ambac team. My sincere thanks go out to all members of our organization.
| firmly believe that people and their skills are Ambac’s most valuable resource.

Early in 2003 we bid farewell to a longtime friend and valued member
of the Ambac team, our Chief Financial Officer, Frank Bivona. After eighteen
years of service to Ambac, Frank has decided to pursue his personal desire to run
a business. We sincerely thank Frank for everything he has done to contribute
to Ambac’s achievements and we wish him every success in future endeavors.

Our Board of Directors was enhanced during the year with the addi-
tion of Laura Unger, a former Acting Chairman of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission. Laura brings expertise in technology’s ongoing impact
on the securities markets as well as a broad view of corporate governance
issues, a critical area of focus for all public companies. In today’s volatile world,
we applaud the push for greater transparency and increased emphasis on cor-
porate governance. Through modest enhancements to our financial reporting
systems, Ambac has fully complied with new corporate governance rules and
proposals that arose in 2002. As we have throughout our history, we will be
vigilant and vocal about communicating with rating agencies, regulators and
the investing public.

While plenty of challenges and uncertainties lie ahead — economically
and politically — Ambac's strong financial position, our proven business model
and our talented team of financial specialists will enable us to serve our clients
with thoughtful, innovative ways to access capital. | look forward to the year
ahead, confident that Ambac’s services will continue to be in strong demand
and that our organization is well positioned to take full advantage of the
available opportunities.

Sincerely,

Phil Lassiter



People — Our greatest asset is the individuals who serve our constituen-
cies. We demonstrate by our behavior and actions that our people, their
skills, development and motivation “make the difference” to give us a
competitive advantage in the marketplace.

Reputation — We maintain an environment where integrity and honesty
are fundamental principles of conduct. We know that our reputation is a
franchise that must never be compromised.

Excellence — We understand that success means earning client respect
and exceeding client expectations. We strive to achieve excellence in
every task.

Meritocracy — We seek out and retain the best talent, providing our

people with opportunities to grow and share in our success.

PREMIER VALUES

Innovation — We welcome new insights, new ideas, fresh perspectives.
We value strategic thinking and are not afraid of change, recognizing
that innovation is an essential success element for all companies in all

industries.

Earnings/Returns — We understand that the long-term earnings growth
and attractive returns on capital are of vital importance to our stock-
holders and other constituents.

Risk Management — We recognize that excellence in managing risk is
central to our business and evidence that commitment through exacting
standards and professionalism in all aspects of the risk management

process.

Phillip B. Lassiter
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Robert J. Genader
President and Chief Operating Officer







public finance expertise enables the company to insure a wide range of debt issued

by state and local governments and their agencies. A triple-A-rated Ambac financial
guarantee provides an unconditional and irrevocable pledge to pay all scheduled interest and principal if an issuer
should default on its obligation. Our public finance business enjoyed a record year in 2002, fueled by new levels of
municipal debt issuance and heightened credit concerns throughout the market. Increased investor wariness boosts
the attractiveness of insured bonds because of their safety, marketability and top ratings. Clients utilize Ambac’s range
of credit analysis and underwriting skills to create innovative financing structures and cost-effective transactions that
provide access to the funding increasingly needed for critical infrastructure and development projects. Cooperative
partnerships between public and private sector participants continued to grow as an important part of our business
in 2002. Additions to Ambac’s professional team during the year further strengthened our ability to add value to more
complex, structured transactions.

To construct needed highways in central Texas, the Texas Department of Transportation (“TXDOT”) brought their first
bond issue to market in 2002: a mammoth $2.2 billion offering. To be constructed by private sector developers, the
cooperative toll road venture is backed by equity funding from the state, and a subordinated loan accessed through
the federal government’s Transportation and Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA). The TXDOT sought a
triple-A-rated guarantee to strengthen the $1.2 billion senior bond issue and turned to Ambac, the only bond insurer
experienced in TIFIA-related projects. The triple-A ratings and Ambac backing helped secure investor confidence in

the issue, which was significantly oversubscribed at the time of offering.







for structured and asset-backed debt obligations contin-

ues to grow as an important and profitable part
of Ambac’s overall book of business. We enjoyed a record year in consumer asset-
backed securities, with execution excellence strengthening our ongoing relationships
with quality issuers. Our mortgage-backed securities portfolio continues to perform
well, even in this time of heightened consumer credit concerns. Ambac’s reputation
for precise credit analysis and efficient execution, as well as strong demand for
Ambac-insured obligations, enabled us to expand into the growing auto loan securi-
tization market in 2002. We continued to be an active participant in the collateral-
ized debt and bond obligation (CDOs and CBOs) market, insuring senior tranches of large, well-diversified pools of
corporate bonds and loans. In our CDO business and throughout structured finance, the expertise of our people remains
a competitive advantage. The less robust economic conditions of 2002 provided opportunities to add highly qualified
professionals to the Ambac team, enhancing the skills and capabilities of our organization. We will continue to selec-
tively add talent to Ambac in anticipation of continued growth throughout our structured finance business.

Collateralized debt obligations and credit derivatives enable financial institutions to manage credit exposure and
capital requirements, essentially separating the transfer of credit risk from funding. Our focus in this market has been
to invest in people with capital markets expertise as well as systems to develop our own proprietary models and
a sophisticated technology platform for front-end valuation. More than 90% of the securities in our CDO portfolio
are rated double-A or better and the strong performance of the portfolios has validated our conservative under-
writing approach. We regularly model our portfolio to enable close monitoring and surveillance of securities in our
insured pools.
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outside the United States continue to provide fertile ground for financial
guarantees. In the United Kingdom, Ambac’s most active international
market, we significantly bolstered our capabilities to structure and insure Private Finance Initiative
(PFI) transactions, adding experienced and talented professionals to our staff. PFl financings, the U.K.

government’s ongoing privatization program, frequently include complex structures and require signif-

icant lead time. Accordingly, our international results for 2002 were below our ambitious expectations,

but our pipeline of transactions is strong and we anticipate a rebound in completed deals in 2003.

Throughout continental Europe, privatization activity and the desire to strengthen those and other

financings with financial guarantees, continues to grow. Ambac’s experience with a wide range of

transaction types spurs continued expansion of our business on the continent. Outside of Europe,

we have focused on niche market opportunities in the Asia Pacific region. In Japan, we are the leading

insurer in the consumer finance sector. Our business in Australia continues to grow, primarily in utilities financing as

well as privatization-related transactions. Ongoing credit concerns throughout the global capital markets should
continue to provide opportunities for Ambac’s international business expansion as we go forward.

Italian property manager, Beni Stabili S.p.A., securitized rental payments for 227 phone exchanges in Italy, originally
acquired through the government’s privatization program. The €1.2 billion floating rate note issue, the first com-
mercial mortgage-backed deal in Italy, included an Ambac guarantee on €514.6 million of the offering. In Australia,
Macquarie Bank Ltd. securitized a nationwide system of broadcast towers, acquired from a post-privatization owner,
in a A$650 million bond offering, strengthened to triple-A with an Ambac Assurance guarantee.










Risk management is incorporated into Ambac’s entire business process. It starts with high underwriting standards and
strict sector and market limits in our portfolio. Once underwritten, we monitor ongoing credit quality using advanced
quantitative tools and a variety of performance measures. As needed, we transfer large concentrations of risk through
treaty or facultative reinsurance. As part of our total portfolio view, we calculate and assign economic capital to deals,
continually assessing our value-at-risk and performing risk-based capital stress tests. We periodically reexamine the

assumptions underlying our credit models, incorporating the latest industry best practices.

This enables us to continually improve the models we use for risk management.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

GENERAL

Ambac Financial Group, Inc., headquartered in New York City, is
a holding company whose subsidiaries provide financial guar-
antees and financial services to clients in both the public and
private sectors around the world.

The following paragraphs describe the consolidated results
of operations of Ambac and its subsidiaries for 2002, 2001 and
2000, and its financial condition as of December 31, 2002 and
2001. These results are presented for Ambac’s two reportable
segments: Financial Guarantee and Financial Services. Manage-
ment has identified the accounting for loss and loss adjustment
expenses and the valuation of financial instruments as critical
accounting policies. These policies are discussed in the applica-
ble sections of this document. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
notes thereon included elsewhere in this report.

Materials in this annual report may contain information
that includes or is based upon forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Forward-looking statements present Ambac's expec-
tations or forecasts of future events. You can identify these
statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to his-
torical or current facts and relate to future operating or
financial performance.

Any or all of Ambac’s forward-looking statements here or
in other publications may turn out to be wrong and are based
on current expectations and the current economic environ-
ment. Ambac’s actual results may vary materially, and there are
no guarantees about the performance of Ambac’s securities.
Among factors that could cause actual results to differ materi-
ally are: (1) changes in the economic, credit or interest rate envi-
ronment in the United States and abroad; (2) the level of activity
within the national and worldwide debt markets; (3) competi-
tive conditions and pricing levels; (4) legislative and regulatory
developments; (5) changes in tax laws; (6) the policies and
actions of the United States and other governments and (7)
other risks and uncertainties that have not been identified at
this time. Ambac is not obligated to publicly correct or update
any forward-looking statement if we later become aware that
it is not likely to be achieved, except as required by law. You are
advised, however, to consult any further disclosures we make on
related subjects in Ambac’s reports to the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Net Income. Ambac’s net income in 2002 was
$432.6 million or $3.97 per diluted share flat, compared to
$432.9 million or $3.97 per diluted share in 2001. Ambac’s
income before income taxes was $564.2 million in 2002, a 1%
decrease from income before income taxes of $568.7 million in
2001. Of the $564.2 million of income before income taxes in
2002, $712.9 million was from Financial Guarantee, $(102.8)
million from Financial Services and $(45.9) million from Corpo-
rate. Corporate consists primarily of Ambac’s interest expense.
That compares to income (loss) before income taxes in 2001 of
$583.9 million, $27.4 million and $(42.6) million from Financial
Guarantee, Financial Services and Corporate, respectively.
Financial guarantee income before income taxes increased as a
result of (i) higher net premiums earned and other credit
enhancement fees, (ii) higher net investment income and (iii)
higher net realized investment gains, offset by (i) higher unre-
alized losses on credit derivative contracts, (ii) higher operating
expenses and (iii) a higher provision for losses and loss adjust-
ment expenses. The Financial Services decline is primarily attrib-
utable to net realized investment losses of $134.1 million.

Ambac’s net income in 2001 increased 18% from $366.2
million, and 16% from $3.41 per diluted share, in 2000. This
increase was attributable to growth in Financial Guarantee
operating income partially offset by a decline in Financial Ser-
vices net income. Ambac’s 2001 income before income taxes
increased 18% from $482.1 million in 2000. Income (loss) before
income taxes in 2000 consisted of $495.2 million from Financial
Guarantee, $28.7 million from Financial Services and $(41.8)
million from Corporate.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

Ambac provides financial guarantees for debt obligations
through its principal operating subsidiary Ambac Assurance
Corporation, as well as credit protection in the form of struc-
tured credit derivatives through Ambac Credit Products LLC, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Ambac Assurance. Ambac provides
these services in three principal markets: public finance, struc-
tured finance and international finance.

Public finance obligations are bonds issued by states,
municipalities and other governmental or not-for-profit enti-
ties located in the United States (“Public Finance”). Bond pro-
ceeds are used to finance or refinance a broad spectrum of
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public purpose initiatives, including education, utility, trans-
portation, health care and other general purpose projects.
Although Ambac generally guarantees the full range of Public
Finance obligations, Ambac concentrates on those deals that
require more structuring skills. Certain projects, which had been
financed by the local or US. government alone are now
being financed through public-private partnerships. In these
transactions, debt service on the bonds, rather than being paid
solely by tax revenues or other governmental funds, are being
paid from a variety of revenue sources, including revenues
derived from the project itself. Examples of these deals include
stadium financings, student housing and military housing.

Structured finance obligations include the securitization
of avariety of asset types such as mortgages, home equity loans,
leases and pooled debt obligations originated in the United
States (“Structured Finance”). Currently, the largest component
of Ambac's Structured Finance business relates to the securiti-
zation of mortgages and home equity loans. Another target area
in Structured Finance is the credit enhancement of pooled debt
obligations including structured credit derivatives. These trans-
actions involve the securitization of a portfolio of corporate
bonds and loan obligations and asset-backed securities (the
“Securitized Assets”). Ambac’s exposure to these Securitized
Assets is mitigated through first loss protection. Typically, first
loss protection is in the form of over-collateralization (i.e., the
principal amount of the Securitized Assets exceeds the principal
amount of the structured finance obligations guaranteed by
Ambac Assurance), which allows the transaction to experience
defaults among the Securitized Assets before a default is expe-
rienced on the structured finance obligations.

International finance obligations include public purpose
infrastructure projects and asset-backed securities originated
outside of the United States (“International Finance”). Ambac’s
emphasis internationally has been on Western Europe, Japan
and Australia. In the United Kingdom, Ambac has participated
extensively in the Private Finance Initiative whereby the gov-
ernment has been privatizing certain activities. In Japan,
Ambac has an alliance with Sampo Japan Financial Guarantee

Insurance Co. Ltd. Ambac also participates in developing mar-
kets through certain structures such as pooled debt obligations
or future flow transactions. Future flow transactions essentially
securitize future revenue streams derived from operating
receivables or the sale of commodities.

Gross Par Value Written.  Ambac  Assurance guaranteed
$116.4 billion of par value bonds during 2002, an increase of
29% from $90.1 billion in 2001. Par value written during 2001
increased 17% compared to $77.0 billion written during 2000.
Par value written during 2002 comprised $43.7 billion from the
guarantee of Public Finance obligations, $47.5 billion from
Structured Finance obligations and $25.2 billion from Interna-
tional Finance obligations, versus $33.2 billion, $37.4 billion and
$19.5 hillion, respectively, in 2001 and $19.6 hillion, $33.9 bil-
lion and $23.5 hillion, respectively, in 2000. The 2002 increase
in guaranteed Public Finance obligations was affected by a 25%
increase in total Public Finance issuance, an increase in insured
market penetration from 47% in 2001 to 49% in 2002, partially
offset by a decrease in Ambac’s Public Finance market share dur-
ing the period from 25% in 2001 to 21% in 2002. The increase
in total issuance was largely the result of the lower interest rate
environment causing an increase in both the refinancing and
new money components of the market during 2002. The
increase in guaranteed Structured Finance obligations during
2002 resulted from higher mortgage-backed guarantees and
greater penetration into other consumer asset-backed markets
(auto rental and credit card securitizations). International
Finance obligations guaranteed during 2002 increased primar-
ily due to higher structured credit derivatives written.

The following table provides a breakdown of guaranteed
net par outstanding by market sector:

(Dollars in hillions) 2002 2001
Public Finance $206.5 $185.0
Structured Finance 105.0 88.7
International Finance 67.7 443
Total net par outstanding $379.2 $318.0




Gross Premiums Written. Ambac receives insurance premi-
ums either upfront at policy issuance or on an installment basis
over the life of the transaction. The collection method is deter-
mined at the time of policy issuance. Gross premiums written in
2002 were $904.0 million, an increase of 32% from $683.3 mil-
lion in 2001. Up-front premiums written in 2002 were $552.6
million, an increase of 25% from $440.8 million. This increase is
a result of increased business activity in Public and Structured
Finance, partially offset by lower up-front International Finance
gross premiums written. Installment premiums written in 2002

were $351.4 million, an increase of 45% from $242.5 million in
2001. The growth in installment premiums is due to the grow-
ing book of business in all segments with written premiums of
$99.5 million from transactions guaranteed in 2002. Gross pre-
miums written in 2001 increased 41% from $483.1 million in
2000. Thisis a result of increased business activity in all markets,
particularly Public Finance. The following table sets forth the
amounts of gross premiums written and related gross par writ-
ten by type:

(Dollars in millions) 2001 2000
Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross
Premiums Par Premiums Par Premiums Par
Written Written Written Written Written Written
Public Finance:
Up-front $462.1 $ 39,283 $323.7 $30,414 $160.5 $17,536
Installment 42.2 4,448 25.4 2,797 20.1 2,101
Total Public Finance 504.3 43,731 349.1 33,211 180.6 19,637
Structured Finance:
Up-front 57.9 3,498 40.6 3,016 82.8 3,641
Installment 204.6 43,947 152.5 34,437 116.7 30,224
Total Structured Finance 262.5 47,445 193.1 37,453 199.5 33,865
International Finance:
Up-front 32.6 1,662 76.5 2,965 52.6 3,103
Installment 104.6 23,539 64.6 16,504 50.4 20,379
Total International Finance 137.2 25,201 141.1 19,469 103.0 23,482
Total $904.0 $116,377 $683.3 $90,133 $483.1 $76,984
Total up-front $552.6 $ 44,443 $440.8 $36,395 $295.9 $24,280
Total installment 351.4 71,934 242.5 53,738 187.2 52,704
Total $904.0 $116,377 $683.3 $90,133 $483.1 $76,984

Adjusted Gross Premiums. Adjusted gross premiums written,
which is not promulgated under accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), is used
by management, equity analysts and investors to measure the
financial results of Ambac. Adjusted gross premiums written,
which Ambac reports as analytical data, is defined as gross
(direct and assumed) up-front premiums written plus the pre-
sent value of estimated future installment premiums written on
insurance policies and structured credit derivatives issued in the
period. The definition of adjusted gross premiums written used
by Ambac may differ from definitions of adjusted gross premi-
ums written used by other public holding companies of finan-
cial guarantee insurers. Adjusted gross premiums written were
$1,299.5 million in 2002, up 33% from $974.3 million in 2001.
The increase was due to increased activity in all markets. Public
Finance adjusted gross premiums were $552.8 million in 2002,
up 51% from $366.9 million in 2001. This increase resulted from
higher issuance, and higher insured penetration, partially offset
by a decrease in market share, as discussed above under “Gross
Par Value Written.” Structured Finance adjusted gross premiums
were $441.2 million in 2002, up 39% from $318.5 million in
2001. This increase resulted from strong business activity in
pooled debt, investor-owned utility and consumer asset-backed
transactions, particularly mortgage, auto and credit card asset
types. International Finance adjusted gross premiums were
$305.5 million in 2002, up 6% from $288.9 million in 2001.

International Finance business continues to be dominated by
large transactions with the top ten deals comprising $149.1 mil-
lion and $153.3 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. These
deals represent 49% and 53% of total International Finance
adjusted gross premiums written for 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively. The activity in 2002 was represented by a broad spectrum
of bond types, specifically utilities, commercial asset-backed
securitizations, private finance initiatives in the United King-
dom and future flow transactions. Adjusted gross premiums
written in 2001 increased 37% from $710.7 million in 2000. The
increase in 2001 was due to increased activity in all markets. The
aggregate net present value, calculated at a 7% discount rate,
of estimated future installment premiums was $1,342.2 million
at December 31, 2002, up 36% from $986.8 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2001.

Ceded Premiums Written. Ceded premiums written in 2002
were $113.5 million, up 19% from $95.5 million in 2001. Ceded
premiums written as a percentage of gross premiums written
were 13% and 14% for 2002 and 2001, respectively. This decline
was primarily due to lower ceded premiums of Public Finance
transactions. Ceded premiums written in 2001 were up 18%
from $80.8 million in 2000. The increase in ceded premiums
written in 2001 was largely due to higher cessions of Public
Finance premiums pursuant to a reinsurance surplus share
treaty that Ambac Assurance implemented during 2001,
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partially offset by lower cessions on International Finance
transactions. Ceded premiums written were 17% of gross pre-
miums written in 2000.

The reinsurance of risk does not relieve Ambac of its origi-
nal liability to its policyholders. In the event that any of Ambac’s
reinsurers are unable to meet their obligations under reinsur-
ance contracts, Ambac would be liable for such defaulted
amounts. To minimize exposure to significant losses from rein-
surers, Ambac (i) evaluates the financial condition of its reinsur-
ers; (ii) has collateral provisions in certain reinsurance contracts
and (iii) has certain termination triggers that can be exercised
by Ambac in the event of a rating downgrade of a reinsurer.
Ambac held letters of credit and collateral amounting to
approximately $135.7 million from its reinsurers as of Decem-
ber 31, 2002. The following table provides ceded par outstand-
ing by financial strength rating of Ambac’s reinsurers, on a
Standard and Poor’s ("S&P") basis:

(Dollars in billions) 2002 2001
AAA $23.8 $38.3
AA 20.4 09
Total $44.2 $39.2

During 2002, S&P lowered the financial strength rating of a
number of Ambac’s reinsurers from AAA to AA. Additionally, on
January 13, 2003 S&P lowered the financial strength rating of
AXA Re Finance S.A. from AAA to BBB. This downgrade was
attributable to AXA Re Finance S.A’s decision to cease writing
new financial guarantee business. At December 31, 2002, par
ceded to AXA Re Finance S.A. was $8.3 billion. The downgrade
of AXA Re Finance SA. has triggered Ambac’s ability to
terminate all Ambac/AXA Re’s reinsurance agreements. Ambac
is currently exploring all options on this book of business.

Net Premiums Earned and Other Credit Enhancement Fees.
Net premiums earned and other credit enhancement fees dur-
ing 2002 were $500.3 million, an increase of 25% from $400.4
million in 2001. This increase was primarily the result of the
larger Financial Guarantee book of business, higher refundings,
calls, and other accelerations of previously insured obligations
(collectively referred to as “refundings”) during the year and
higher other credit enhancement fees earned from the struc-
tured credit derivatives business.

When an issue insured by Ambac Assurance has been
refunded or called, any remaining unearned premium (net of
refunding credits, if any) is earned at that time. Earnings on
refundings typically relate to transactions where the premium
is paid up-front for the life of the policy. Refunding levels vary
depending upon a number of conditions, primarily the relation-
ship between current interest rates and interest rates on out-
standing debt. Net premiums earned during 2002 included
$52.0 million (netincome per diluted share effect of $0.27) from
refundings of previously insured issues. Net premiums earned in

2001 included $38.6 million (net income per diluted share effect
of $0.20) from refundings. The current low interest rate envi-
ronment has prompted the relatively high level of accelerated
earnings. When interest rates rise in the future, accelerated
earnings should decline.

Excluding the effect of accelerated earnings related to
refundings, normal net premiums earned (which is defined as
net premiums earned less refundings) in 2002 were $419.5 mil-
lion, an increase of 23% from $340.1 million in 2001. Normal
net premiums earned for the year ended December 31, 2002
increased 14%, 19% and 56% for Public, Structured and Inter-
national Finance, respectively, from the year ended December
31, 2001. Public Finance earned premium growth resulted from
increased activity in that market over the year, enhanced by
the continued focus on structured and innovative municipal
transactions. Normal earned premium growth for Structured
Finance continues to be driven by strong writings in consumer
asset-backed transactions partially offset by the continued high
level of pay-downs of the existing mortgage-backed book.
International Finance net earned premium growth resulted
from strong activity in pooled debt obligations, future flow and
asset-backed transactions.

Other credit enhancement fees in 2002, which is primarily
comprised of fees received from the structured credit deriva-
tives product, were $28.8 million, an increase of 33% from $21.7
million in 2001. This increase was due to rapid growth in the
structured credit derivative business in 2001 and 2002.

Net premiums earned and other credit enhancement fees
during 2001 increased 24% from $323.4 million in 2000. This
increase was primarily the result of the larger Financial Guaran-
tee book of business, higher refundings and higher other credit
enhancement fees earned from the structured credit derivatives
business. Net premiums earned in 2000 included $22.2 million
(net income per diluted share effect of $0.12) from refundings.
Excluding the effect of accelerated earnings related to refund-
ings, normal net premiums earned in 2001 increased 18% from
$289.0 million in 2000. Other credit enhancement fees
increased 78% from $12.2 million in 2000.

The following table provides a breakdown of net premiums
earned by market sector and other credit enhancement fees:

(Dollars in millions) 2002 2001 2000
Public Finance $156.3 $137.2 $126.4
Structured Finance 174.7 146.3 119.4
International Finance 88.5 56.6 43.2
Total normal premiums earned 419.5 340.1 289.0
Refundings 52.0 38.6 222
Total net premiums earned 471.5 378.7 311.2
Other credit enhancement fees 28.8 21.7 12.2
Total net premiums earned and

other credit enhancement fees  $500.3 $400.4 $323.4




Net Investment Income. Net investment income in 2002 was
$297.3 million, an increase of 11% from $267.8 million in 2001.
The increase was attributable to: (i) the growth of the invest-
ment portfolio resulting from the growth in the Financial Guar-
antee book of business, partially offset by a lower reinvestment
rate due to the current interest rate environment; and (ii) a cap-
ital contribution from Ambac Financial Group, Inc. to Ambac
Assurance totaling approximately $176 million during the
fourth quarter of 2001. The contribution was in the form of tax-
able investment securities. Investments in tax-exempt securities
amounted to 71% of the total fair value of the portfolio as of
December 31, 2002, versus 65% and 72% as of December 31,
2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively. The average pre-tax
yield-to-maturity on the investment portfolio was 5.18% as of
December 31,2002 compared with 5.74% and 6.20% at Decem-
ber 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Net investment income in
2001 increased 11% from $241.0 million in 2000. This increase
was primarily attributable to the growth of the investment
portfolio resulting from the growth in the Financial Guarantee
book of business, partially offset by a lower reinvestment rate
due to the interest rate environment, and a capital contribution
from Ambac Financial Group, Inc. to Ambac Assurance during
the fourth quarter of 2001 as mentioned above.

Net Realized Investment Gains. Net realized investment gains
in 2002 were $40.9 million, compared to net realized gains of
$2.1 million and $0.7 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
following table details amounts included in net realized gains:

(Dollars in millions) 2002 2001 2000
Net gains on securities sold $39.1 $53 $42
Foreign exchange gains (losses)

on investments 1.8 (3.2) (3.5)
Net realized gains $40.9 $2.1 $0.7

Net gains on securities sold are generated as a result of the
ongoing management of the investment portfolio. Foreign
exchange gains and losses result from investing in short-term
foreign currency denominated securities.

Net Unrealized Losses on Credit Derivative Contracts. Net
unrealized losses on credit derivative contracts in 2002 were
$27.9 million, compared to net unrealized losses of $3.6 million
and $4.1 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The change in
estimated fair value of structured credit derivative contracts
reflects net mark-to-market gains and losses due to changes in
credit spreads on the underlying obligations. Additionally, real-
ized net losses paid on structured credit derivatives totaled $5.8
million in the year ended December 31, 2002, compared with
none in 2001 and 2000.

Other Income. Other income in 2002 was $5.5 million, an
increase of 6% from $5.2 million in 2001. Included in other
income are deal structuring fees and commitment fees. Other
income increased 18% in 2001 from $4.4 million in 2000.

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses. Losses and loss
adjustment expenses in 2002 were $26.7 million, versus $20.0
million in 2001 and $15.0 million in 2000. Losses and loss
adjustment expenses are based upon estimates of the ultimate
aggregate losses inherent in the Financial Guarantee portfolio.
In most instances, claim payments are forecasted in advance as
a result of Ambac’s active surveillance of the insured book of
business. Based upon company and industry experience, claim
payments become probable and estimable once the issuer’s
credit profile has migrated to certain impaired credit levels. The
insured party has the right to a claim under Ambac’s financial
insurance policy at the first scheduled debt service date of the
defaulted obligation. The trustee for the insured obligation
notifies Ambac of the payment default so that a claim payment
can be made. The trustee reports payment defaults at or prior to
the scheduled payment date. Subsequent claims would be paid
if payment defaults continue and would be based on the origi-
nally scheduled interest and principal payment schedule.

The liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses con-
sists of case basis credit and active credit reserves. Case basis
credit reserves are established for losses on guaranteed obliga-
tions that have already defaulted. These reserves are established
in an amount that is sufficient to cover the present value of the
anticipated defaulted debt service payments over the expected
period of default and estimated expenses associated with set-
tling the claims, less estimated recoveries under collateral and
subrogation rights. As noted above, the payment pattern and
ultimate costs are fixed and determinable on an individual claim
basis (i.e., the originally scheduled debt service of the insured
obligation). Ambac discounts these reserves in accordance with
discount rates prescribed or permitted by state regulatory
authorities. In addition, we, consistent with industry practice,
establish and accrue an active credit reserve, which is separate
from the case basis credit reserves noted above. We believe,
based on our active surveillance of the insured portfolio, along
with historical defaults and related loss data and current eco-
nomic factors, that additional losses are inherent in our portfo-
lio. Current economic factors considered include estimates of
current defaults and recovery values from collateral or subro-
gation rights. The active credit reserve is established based upon
probable debt service defaults from incurred losses, as a result
of credit deterioration. Reserve amounts are reasonably esti-
mated based on management’s review of each credit. Active
surveillance of the insured portfolio enables Ambac to track
credit migration of insured obligations from period to period.
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Our Surveillance group, which is comprised of senior credit
professionals, all of whom are independent from transaction
execution, is responsible for extensive ongoing review of every
credit Ambac has exposure to. At least monthly, Senior Finance
and Credit Management meets with Surveillance to review the
status of their work. During the monthly review, Senior Man-
agement determines the adequacy of Ambac’s loss reserves
and makes any necessary adjustments. The following table
summarizes Ambac's loss reserves split between case basis credit
loss reserves and active credit reserves at December 31, 2002
and 2001:

(Dollars in millions) 2002 2001
Net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves:
Case basis credit reserves* $ 49.0 $ 23.4
Active credit reserves 118.6 126.7
Total $167.6 $150.1

*After netting reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses amounting to $4.6 mil-
lion and $1.0 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The following table summarizes the changes in the total net loss
reserves for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

(Dollars in millions) 2002 2001
Beginning balance of net loss reserves $150.1 $131.3

Additions to loss reserves 26.7 20.0
Losses paid (11.1) (2.6)
Recoveries of paid losses from reinsurers 1.3 -
Recoveries of previously paid losses 0.6 1.4
Ending balance of net loss reserves $167.6 $150.1

At December 31, 2002 case basis credit reserves are sufficient to
cover required debt service through 2026 totaling $69.5 million.
Annual debt service payments are $17.5 million, $18.9 million,
$6.1 million, $3.7 million and $3.6 million for 2003, 2004, 2005,
2006 and 2007, respectively. Additions (reductions) made to the
case basis credit reserve totaled $25.6 million, $(0.1) million and
$12.7 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase
in the 2002 case basis credit reserve is primarily attributable to
credit deterioration on a mortgage-backed issue. At December
31, 2002, case basis credit reserves were $26.1 million for this
issue. Additionally, Ambac paid $3.4 million relating to this issue
in 2002.

The following tables provide details of net losses paid for
the years ended December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000 and net case
reserves at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001

(Dollars in millions) 2002 2001 2000
Net losses paid:

Public Finance $6.4 $2.6 $4.6

Structured Finance 3.4 - -

International Finance - - -
Total $9.8 $2.6 $4.6
(Dollars in millions) 2002 2001
Net case basis credit reserves:

Public Finance $19.0 $23.4

Structured Finance 26.1 -

International Finance 3.9 —
Total $49.0 $23.4

Ambac Assurance’s management believes that the reserves for
losses and loss adjustment expenses are adequate to cover the
ultimate net cost of claims, but the reserves are necessarily
based on estimates and there can be no assurance that the ulti-
mate liability will not exceed such estimates.

Underwriting and Operating Expenses. Underwriting and
operating expenses of $76.5 million in 2002 increased by 13%
from $68.0 million in 2001. Underwriting and operating
expenses in 2001 increased 23% from $55.2 million in 2000.
Underwriting and operating expenses consist of gross under-
writing and operating expenses, less the deferral to future peri-
ods of expenses and reinsurance commissions related to the
acquisition of new insurance contracts, plus the amortization of
previously deferred expenses and reinsurance commissions. In
2002, gross underwriting and operating expenses were $117.7
million, an increase of 19% from $99.3 million in 2001. During
2001, gross underwriting and operating expenses increased
12% from $88.6 million in 2000. The increases in gross under-
writing and operating expenses in both 2002 and 2001 reflect
the overall increased business activity in those years and are pri-
marily attributable to higher compensation costs related to the
addition of staff and higher premium taxes. Underwriting and
operating expenses deferred were $73.1 million, $59.5 million,
and $55.8 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
amortization of previously deferred expenses and reinsurance
commissions was $32.3 million, $28.2 million, and $22.5 million
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The high level of refund-
ings contributed to the increase in amortization of previously
deferred expenses in 2002 as any deferred costs associated with
a refunded issue is fully amortized at the time of refunding.



FINANCIAL SERVICES

Through its Financial Services subsidiaries, Ambac provides
financial and investment products including investment agree-
ments, interest rate swaps, total return swaps, funding conduits,
investment advisory and cash management services, to munic-
ipalities and their authorities, school districts, health care orga-
nizations and asset-backed issuers.

Financial Services net revenue is defined and analyzed by
management as gross interest income less gross interest
expense from investment and payment agreements plus other
revenue, and excludes net realized and unrealized losses. Net
revenues in 2002 increased 4% to $54.3 million from $52.2 mil-
lion in 2001. This increase is primarily due to higher investment
agreement net interest income due to higher interest rate
spreads and higher volume, partially offset by lower interest rate
swap revenues. Revenues from investment advisory and cash
management decreased 3% in 2002 compared to 2001. Net rev-
enues in 2001 decreased 17% from $62.7 million in 2000. This
decrease in net revenue from 2000 to 2001 was primarily due to
lower revenues from interest rate swaps and lower investment
agreement net interest income due to lower interest rate
spreads, partially offset by higher volume. Revenues from
investment advisory and cash management increased 6% in
2001 compared to 2000.

Net realized investment losses in 2002 were $134.1 million,
resulting primarily from a write-down of asset-backed notes
issued by National Century Financial Enterprises, Inc. (“NCFE”).
These notes, which were rated triple-A until October 25, 2002,
have defaulted and NCFE filed for protection under Chapter 11
of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in November 2002. The NCFE notes,
which are backed by health care receivables, have been written
down to approximately 20% of par value, which represents
Ambac’s best estimate of its future recovery based on existing
facts and circumstances.

Financial Services other expenses in 2002 were $22.2 mil-
lion, an increase of 2% from $21.8 million in 2001. Other
expenses in 2001 decreased 12% from $24.8 million in 2000.

CORPORATE ITEMS

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $43.7 million, $40.4
million and $37.5 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The 2002 increase is primarily attributable to Ambac’s issuance
of $200 million in debentures in October 2001, partially offset
by lower bank fees associated with capital facilities.

Income Taxes. Income taxes for 2002 were at an effective rate
of 23.3%, compared to 23.9% and 24.1% for 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate in 2002 as
compared to 2001 is primarily due to the NCFE loss and the
related reduction in taxable profits. The decrease in the effective
tax rate in 2001 as compared to 2000 is due to a favorable set-
tlement of a state income tax audit, partially offset by increased
underwriting profits.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Ambac Financial Group, Inc. Liquidity. Ambac’s liquidity, both
on a short-term basis (for the next twelve months) and a long-
term basis (beyond the next twelve months), is largely depen-
dent upon: (i) Ambac Assurance’s ability to pay dividends or
make other payments to Ambac; (ii) external financings; and (iii)
investment income from its investment portfolio. Pursuant to
Wisconsin insurance laws, Ambac Assurance may declare divi-
dends, provided that, after giving effect to the distribution, it
would not violate certain statutory equity, solvency and asset
tests. Based upon these tests, without regulatory approval, the
maximum amount that will be available during 2003 for pay-
ment by Ambac Assurance is approximately $223 million. Dur-
ing 2002, Ambac Assurance paid dividends of $78.0 million on
its common stock to Ambac.

Ambac’s principal uses of liquidity are for the payment of
its operating expenses, income taxes, interest on its debt, divi-
dends on its shares of common stock, purchases of its common
stock in the open market and capital investments in its sub-
sidiaries. Ambac contributed $50 million to Ambac Capital Cor-
poration during 2002. Based on the amount of dividends that it
expects to receive from Ambac Assurance and other subsidiaries
during 2003, and the income it expects to receive from its
investment portfolio, management believes that Ambac will
have sufficient liquidity to satisfy its needs over the next twelve
months, including the ability to pay dividends on its common
stock in accordance with its dividend policy. Beyond the next
twelve months, Ambac Assurance’s ability to declare and pay
dividends to Ambac may be influenced by a variety of factors
including adverse market changes, insurance regulatory
changes and changes in general economic conditions. Conse-
quently, although management believes that Ambac will con-
tinue to have sufficient liquidity to meet its debt service and
other obligations over the long term, no guarantee can be given
that Ambac Assurance will be able to dividend amounts suffi-
cient to pay all of Ambac’s operating expenses, debt service
obligations and dividends on its common stock.
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Ambac Assurance Liquidity. The principal uses of Ambac
Assurance’s liquidity are the payment of operating expenses,
claims paid, reinsurance premiums, taxes, dividends to Ambac,
and capital investments in its subsidiaries. Management
believes that Ambac Assurance’s operating liquidity needs can
be funded exclusively from its operating cash flow. The princi-
pal sources of Ambac Assurance’s liquidity are gross premiums
written, scheduled investment maturities, net investment
income and receipts from structured credit derivatives.

Financial Services Liquidity. The principal uses of liquidity by
Financial Services subsidiaries are payment of investment
agreement obligations pursuant to defined terms, net obliga-
tions under interest rate swaps and related hedges, operating
expenses, income taxes, and dividends to Ambac. Management
believes that its Financial Services liquidity needs can be funded
primarily from its operating cash flow and the maturity of its
invested assets. The principal sources of this segment’s liquidity
are proceeds from issuance of investment agreements, net
investment income, maturities of securities from its investment
portfolio (which are invested with the objective of matching the
maturity schedule of its obligations under the investment
agreements), net receipts from interest rate swaps and related
hedges, and fees for investment management services. Addi-
tionally, from time to time, liquidity needs of the Financial Ser-
vices subsidiaries are satisfied by short-term intercompany
loans from Ambac Assurance. The investment objectives with
respect to investment agreements are to achieve the highest
after-tax total return, subject to a minimum average quality rat-
ing of Aa/AA on invested assets, and to maintain cash flow
matching of invested assets to funded liabilities to minimize
interest rate and liquidity exposure. Financial Services sub-
sidiaries maintain a portion of their assets in short-term invest-
ments and repurchase agreements in order to meet unexpected
liquidity needs.

Credit Facilities. Ambac and Ambac Assurance have a revolv-
ing credit facility with six major international banks for $300
million, which expires in July 2003 and provides a two-year term
loan provision. The facility is available for general corporate
purposes, including the payment of claims. As of December 31,
2002 and 2001, no amounts were outstanding under this credit
facility. This facility’s financial covenants require that Ambac: (i)
maintain as of the end of each fiscal quarter a debt to capital
ratio of not more than 30% and (ii) maintain at all times total
stockholders’ equity equal to or greater than $1.75 billion.

Capital Support. Ambac Assurance has a series of perpetual
put options on its own preferred stock. The counterparty to
these put options are trusts established by a major investment
bank. The trusts were created as a vehicle for providing capital
support to Ambac Assurance by allowing it to obtain immediate
access to new capital at its sole discretion at any time through
the exercise of the put option. If the put option were exercised,
the preferred stock holdings of Ambac Assurance would give
investors the rights of an equity investor in Ambac Assurance.
Such rights are subordinate to insurance claims, as well as to the
general unsecured creditors of Ambac Assurance. If exercised,
Ambac Assurance would receive up to $800 million in return for
the issuance of its own perpetual preferred stock, the proceeds
of which may be used for any purpose including the payment of
claims. Dividend payments on the preferred stock are cumula-
tive only if Ambac Assurance pays dividends on its common
stock. Each trust is restricted to holding high quality short-term
commercial paper investments to ensure that it can meet its
obligations under the put option. To fund these investments,
each trust has issued its own auction market perpetual pre-
ferred stock. Ambac Assurance pays a floating put option fee.
Each trust is rated AA/Aa2 by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s,
respectively.

Stock Repurchase Program. The Board of Directors of Ambac
has authorized the establishment of a stock repurchase program
that permits the repurchase of up to 12,000,000 shares of
Ambac’s common stock. During 2002, Ambac acquired approx-
imately 695,000 shares for an aggregate amount of $41.1 mil-
lion. Since inception of the Stock Repurchase Program, Ambac
has acquired approximately 8,967,000 shares for an aggregate
amount of $265.9 million.

Balance Sheet. Total assets as of December 31, 2002 were
$15.36 billion, an increase of 24% from $12.34 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 2001. This increase was due primarily to cash generated
from business written during 2002 and higher volume in the
guaranteed investment agreement business. Stockholders’
equity as of December 31, 2002 was $3.63 billion, an increase of
22% from $2.98 billion at year-end 2001. The increase stemmed
primarily from net income for the year and an increase in the
fair market value of the investment portfolio due to a decline
in interest rates during the year.



The following table summarizes the composition of the fair value of Ambac’s investment portfolio by segment at December 31,

2002 and 2001:
Financial Financial
(Dollars in millions) Guarantee Services Corporate Total
2002:
Fixed income securities:
Municipal obligations $4,470.1 $ 4178 § - $ 4,887.9
Corporate obligations 4325 1,136.8 — 1,569.3
Foreign government obligations 120.6 - - 120.6
U.S. government obligations 101.6 6.6 - 108.2
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
(includes U.S. government agency obligations) 846.0 4,048.0 17.6 4911.6
Other 1.7 — 0.6 2.3
5972.5 5,609.2 18.2 11,599.9
Short-term 284.3 71.6 39.9 395.8
6,256.8 5,680.8 58.1 11,995.7
Fixed income securities pledged as collateral:
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
(includes U.S. government agency obligations) — 543.6 — 543.6
Total investments $6,256.8 $6,224.4 $58.1 $12,539.3
Percent total 49.9% 49.6% 0.5% 100%
2001:
Fixed income securities:
Municipal obligations $3,540.3 $ 1445 $ - $ 3,684.8
Corporate obligations 656.2 674.4 - 1,330.6
Foreign government obligations 96.6 - - 96.6
U.S. government obligations 54.8 6.0 17.5 78.3
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
(including U.S. government agency obligations) 7352 2,530.4 13.3 3,278.9
Other 1.4 — 0.8 2.2
5,084.5 3,355.3 31.6 8,471.4
Short-term 170.6 2252 19.2 415.0
5,255.1 3,580.5 50.8 8,886.4
Fixed income securities pledged as collateral:
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
(including U.S. government agency obligations) - 1,401.5 - 1,401.5
Total investments $5,255.1 $4,982.0 $50.8 $10,287.9
Percent total 51.1% 48.4% 0.5% 100%

Ambac has a formal review process for all securities in its
investment portfolio, including a review for impairment losses.
Factors considered when assessing impairment include: (i) secu-
rities whose market values have declined by 20% or more below
amortized cost for a continuous period of at least six months;
(i) recent credit downgrades by rating agencies; (iii) the finan-
cial condition of the issuer; (iv) whether scheduled interest pay-
ments are past due; and (v) whether Ambac has the ability and
intent to hold the security for a sufficient period of time to allow
for anticipated recoveries in fair value. If we believe a decline in
the value of a particular investment is temporary, we record the
decline as an unrealized loss in Accumulated Other Compre-
hensive Income in stockholders’ equity on our Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheets. If we believe the decline is “other than temporary,”
we write-down the carrying value of the investment and record
a loss on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Ambac's
assessment of a decline in value includes management’s current

judgment of the factors noted above. If that judgment changes
in the future, Ambac may ultimately record a loss after having
originally concluded that the decline in value was temporary.
The following table summarizes the total pre-tax gross unreal-
ized loss recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income in stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2002 and 2001
by investment category:

2002 Gross 2001 Gross

Unrealized Unrealized

(Dollars in millions) Losses Losses
Fixed income securities:

Municipal obligations $ 46 $29.8

Corporate obligations 27.8 42.6

Foreign government obligations - 1.1

U.S. government obligations 0.3 1.2

Mortgage and asset-backed securities 4.3 20.8

Total $37.0 $95.5
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The following table summarizes, for all securities in an unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the aggregate fair
value and gross unrealized loss by length of time those securities have been continuously in an unrealized loss position:

2002 2001
Estimated Gross Estimated Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(Dollars in millions) Value Losses Value Losses
Municipal obligations in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months $ 146.1 $ 24 $1,010.2 $23.6
7-12 months 0.9 0.3 0.4 0.1
Greater than 12 months 26.9 1.9 91.9 6.1
173.9 4.6 1,102.5 29.8
Corporate obligations in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months 461.1 7.5 339.5 10.4
7-12 months 18.5 2.2 45 0.4
Greater than 12 months 106.7 18.1 258.0 31.8
586.3 27.8 602.0 42.6
Foreign government obligations in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months 1.6 - 446 1.1
7-12 months - - - -
Greater than 12 months - - — —
1.6 - 44.6 1.1
U.S. government obligations in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months 15.9 0.3 18.3 1.2
7-12 months - - - -
Greater than 12 months - - — —
15.9 0.3 18.3 1.2
Mortgage and asset-backed securities in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months 576.8 3.2 1,348.6 18.2
7-12 months 11.7 0.1 - -
Greater than 12 months 33.1 1.0 15.2 2.6
621.6 4.3 1,363.8 20.8
Total $1,399.3 $37.0 $3,131.2 $95.5

There were no individual securities with material unrealized
losses as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. As of December 31,
2002 below investment grade securities and non-rated securi-
ties which were in an unrealized loss position had a fair value
of $46.7 million and unrealized loss of $5.0 million, which rep-
resented 3% of the total fair value and 14% of total pre-tax

unrealized losses shown in the above table. As of December 31,
2001 below investment grade securities and non-rated securi-
ties which were in an unrealized loss position had a fair value
of $26.9 million and an unrealized loss of $5.3 million, which
represented 1% of the total fair value and 6% of total pre-tax
unrealized loss as shown in the above table.



The following table summarizes amortized cost and fair value for all securities in an unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2002

and 2001, by contractual maturity date:

2002 2001
Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
(Dollars in millions) Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Municipal obligations:
Due in one year or less $ - $ - $ 15 $ 12
Due after one year through five years - - 0.1 0.1
Due after five years through ten years 10.8 10.6 298.7 294.7
Due after ten years 167.7 163.3 832.0 806.5
178.5 173.9 1,132.3 1,102.5
Corporate obligations:
Due in one year or less - - - -
Due after one year through five years 228.7 223.0 12.7 12.5
Due after five years through ten years 29.6 29.3 70.3 69.3
Due after ten years 355.8 334.0 561.6 520.2
614.1 586.3 644.6 602.0
Foreign government obligations:
Due in one year or less 1.6 1.6 - -
Due after one year through five years - - 454 44.4
Due after five years through ten years - - - -
Due after ten years - - 0.3 0.2
1.6 1.6 45.7 44.6
U.S. government obligations:
Due in one year or less - - 0.8 0.8
Due after one year through five years 16.2 15.9 - -
Due after five years through ten years - - - -
Due after ten years - - 18.7 17.5
16.2 15.9 19.5 18.3
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 625.9 621.6 1,384.6 1,363.8
Total $1,436.3 $1,399.3 $3,226.7 $3,131.2

The investment portfolio includes non-publicly traded securi-
ties with a carrying value of $148 million. Fair values for these
securities are based on quotes obtained from brokers, if avail-
able. For those fixed rate securities where broker quotes were
not available, fair values are based on internal valuation mod-
els. For floating rate securities where broker quotes were not
available, fair values are based on the lower of amortized cost

or internal valuation models. Key inputs to the internal valua-
tion models include maturity date, coupon and generic yield
curves for industry and credit rating characteristics that closely
match those characteristics of the specific investment securities
being valued. The valuation results from these models could dif-
fer materially from amounts that would actually be realized in
the market.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following table summarizes, for all securities sold at a loss during 2002 and 2001, the aggregate fair value and realized loss
by length of time those securities were continuously in an unrealized loss position prior to the sales date:

2002 2001
Estimated Gross Estimated Gross
Fair Realized Fair Realized
(Dollars in millions) Value Losses Value Losses
Municipal obligations in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months $ 20.2 $ 04 $ 38.6 $ 04
7-12 months - - 1.0 -
Greater than 12 months 0.8 — 92.3 3.3
21.0 0.4 131.9 3.7
Corporate obligations in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months 459 0.6 349 2.4
7-12 months - - - -
Greater than 12 months 42.1 9.0 319 1.9
88.0 9.6 66.8 4.3
Foreign government obligations in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months - - 12.4 1.2
7-12 months 6.8 0.1 - -
Greater than 12 months - - — —
6.8 0.1 12.4 1.2
U.S. government obligations in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months - - 16.6 1.0
7-12 months 18.0 0.7 - -
Greater than 12 months - - — —
18.0 0.7 16.6 1.0
Mortgage and asset-backed securities in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months 2153 1.0 74.2 0.7
7-12 months 4.0 - - -
Greater than 12 months 3.8 - 48.8 2.2
223.1 1.0 123.0 2.9
Other securities in continuous unrealized loss for:
0-6 months 37.0 1.3 184.7 7.7
7-12 months - - - -
Greater than 12 months - - - —
37.0 1.3 184.7 7.7
Total $393.9 $13.1 $535.4 $20.8

As noted in the “Results of Operations” section, included in 2002
net realized losses was an impairment write-down of $139.7
million, which was excluded from the table above. There were no
impairment write-downs during 2001 and 2000. The remaining
net realized losses included in the 2002, 2001 and 2000 Consol-
idated Statements of Operations were the result of security sales
made in the usual course of business in order to achieve Ambac’s
investment objectives for the Financial Guarantee and Financial
Services investment portfolios discussed below.

Ambac's investment objectives for the Financial Guarantee
portfolio are to maintain an investment duration that closely
approximates the expected duration of related financial guaran-
tee liabilities and achieve the highest after-tax net investment
income, while maintaining a conservative credit risk profile. The
Financial Guarantee investment portfolio is subject to internal
investment guidelines, which are approved by Ambac’s Board of
Directors. Such guidelines set forth minimum credit rating
requirements and credit risk concentration limits.



The following table provides the ratings disribution of the
Financial Guarantee investment portfolio at December 31, 2002
and 2001:

Rating (): 2002 2001
AAAQ) 73% 65%
AA 16 19
A 7 u
BBB 1 2
Below investment grade 1 <1
Not rated 2 3
100% 100%

(1) Ratings represent Standard & Poor’s classifications. If unavailable, Moody’s
rating is used.

@ Includes U.S. Treasury and agency obligations, which comprised approxi-
mately 15% and 13% of the Financial Guarantee investment portfolio as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Approximately 98% and 85% of the mortgage and asset-backed
securities in the Financial Guarantee portfolio is composed of
securities issued by various U.S. government agencies, as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Short-term investments in the Financial Guarantee port-
folio consisted primarily of money market funds, foreign and
domestic time deposits, and discount notes.

The Financial Services investment portfolio consists pri-
marily of assets funded with the proceeds from the issuance of
investment agreement liabilities. The investment objectives of
the portfolio are to match the investment security maturity
schedule to the maturity schedule of related liabilities under the
investment agreements and achieve the highest after-tax net
investment income. The investment portfolio is subject to inter-
nal investment guidelines, which are approved by Ambac’s
Board of Directors. Such guidelines set forth minimum credit
rating requirements and credit risk concentration limits.

The following table provides the ratings distribution of the
Financial Services investment portfolio at December 31, 2002
and 2001:

Rating ©: 2002 2001
AAA@) 88% 88%
AA 2 4
A 6 6
BBB 3 2
Below investment grade 1 <1
Not rated — <1
100% 100%

(1) Ratings represent Standard & Poor’s classifications. If unavailable, Moody’s
rating is used.

@ Includes U.S. Treasury and agency obligations, which comprised approxi-
mately 44% and 34% of the Financial Services investment portfolio as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Approximately 59% and 69% of the mortgage and asset-backed
securities in the Financial Services portfolio is composed of
securities issued by various U.S. government agencies, as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Short-term investments in the Financial Services portfolio
consisted of money market funds.

Ambac enters into derivative contracts classified as held
for trading purposes. Changes in the fair value of derivative

contracts classified as held for trading purposes are recognized
immediately in net income. In determining fair value, Ambac
uses information provided by independent external sources or,
when independent information is not available, internal valua-
tion models are used. Internal valuation models include esti-
mates, made by management, which utilize current and
historical market data. The valuation results from internal mod-
els could differ materially from amounts that would be realized
in the market. The net fair value of derivative contracts classi-
fied as held for trading purposes was $56 million at December
31, 2002. Of that amount, $(9) million was determined using
internal valuation models and $65 million was provided by
external sources. Contracts with maturities in excess of 5 years
accounted for $83 million of the net fair value. Contracts with
maturities of 5 years or less accounted for $(27) million of net
fair value.

Special Purpose Entities. Ambac has transferred third-party
debt obligations to two special purpose entities. The business
purpose of these entities is to provide some of our financial
guarantee clients with funding for their debt obligations. These
special purpose entities meet the characteristics of Qualifying
Special Purpose Entities (“QSPEs”) in accordance with State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards 140 “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments
of Liabilities.” The QSPEs are not consolidated in Ambac’s con-
solidated financial statements. The QSPEs are legal entities that
are demonstrably distinct from Ambac. Ambac, its affiliates or
its agents cannot unilaterally dissolve the QSPEs. The QSPEs per-
mitted activities are limited to (i) purchasing assets from Ambac,
which are defined in the governing documents of the QSPEs,
(if) issuing Medium Term Notes (“MTNs”) to fund such purchase,
(i) executing derivative hedges and (iv) providing related
administrative services. The QSPEs hold only passive debt oblig-
ations transferred to it by Ambac, passive derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes and cash collected from
assets that it holds pending distribution to the MTN holders. The
QSPEs do not hold equity or other types of securities that would
allow for voting rights, significant influence of contractual
options such as the right to unconditionally put or call a finan-
cialinstrument. The legal documents that established the QSPEs
or created the beneficial interests in the transferred assets do
not permit the sale or other disposal of the transferred financial
assets except for disposals in automatic response to the terms
of such financial assets (this would include only issuer call pro-
visions). These required disposals are outside the control of
Ambac, its affiliates and the QSPEs. Beneficial interest holders
do not have the rights to put their beneficial interest back to
the QSPEs.

As of December 31, 2002, there have been 12 individual
transactions processed through the QSPEs. In each case, Ambac
sells fixed income debt obligations issued by third parties to the
QSPEs. Ambac receives cash consideration for all assets trans-
ferred to the QSPEs. Ambac surrenders control over the trans-
ferred debt obligations. There are no agreements that entitle or
obligate Ambac to repurchase or redeem assets. The QSPEs are
structured as bankruptcy remote entities. Ambac management
believes that the assets transferred represent a true sale and the
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assets held by the QSPEs are beyond the reach of Ambac and its
creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership. Legal coun-
sel has concurred with management's belief and has provided
Ambac true sale and non-substantive consolidation opinions.
The purchase by the QSPEs is financed through the issuance of
MTNs, which are collateralized by the purchased assets. Deriva-
tive contracts may be used for hedging purposes only. Deriva-
tive hedges are established at the time MTNs are issued to
purchase debt obligations. Ambac Assurance may issue a finan-
cial guarantee insurance policy on the assets sold, the MTNs
issued and the derivative contracts used. As of December 31,
2002, Ambac Assurance had financial guarantee insurance poli-
ciesissued for all assets owned, MTNs issued and derivative con-
tracts used by the QSPEs.

Ambac's exposure under these financial guarantee insur-
ance policies is included in the disclosure in Note 12 “Guaran-
teesin Force” to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant
to the terms of Ambac Assurance’s insurance policy, insurance
premiums are paid to Ambac Assurance by the QSPEs and are
earned in a manner consistent with other insurance policies,
over the risk period. Any losses incurred would be included in
Ambac’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. To date, no
losses have been recognized. Under the terms of an Administra-
tive Agency Agreement, Ambac provides some administrative
services, primarily collecting amounts due on the obligations
and making interest payments on the MTNS.

Assets sold to the QSPEs during 2002, 2001 and 2000 were
$350.0 million, $793.4 million and $159.9 million, respectively.
No gains or losses were recognized on these sales. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2002, the estimated fair value of financial assets, MTN
liabilities and derivative hedge liabilities were $1,347.3 million,
$1,263.5 million and $91.0 million, respectively. When market
quotes are not available, estimated fair value is determined uti-
lizing valuation models. These models include estimates, made
by Ambac management, which utilize current market informa-
tion. The valuation results from these models could differ mate-
rially from amounts that would actually be realized in the
market. Ambac Assurance received gross premiums and other
fees for issuing financial guarantee policies on the assets, MTNs
and derivative contracts of $19.3 million, $23.7 million and $3.2
million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Ambac received fees for providing administrative
services amounting to $0.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 mil-
lion for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Cash Flows. Net cash provided by operating activities was
$805.5 million, $671.8 million and $481.3 million during 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. These cash flows were primarily
provided by the Financial Guarantee operations. Net cash pro-
vided by (used in) financing activities was $1,650.2 million,
$760.8 million and $(1,226.0) million during 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. Financing activities for the years ended
2002 and 2001 included $1,442.0 million and $621.4 million,

respectively, in netinvestment agreementsissued (net of invest-
ment agreement draws). Financing activity for the year ended
2000 included $1,217.8 million used by the investment agree-
ment business for net draws paid (net of investment agreements
issued). Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities was
$(2,506.4) million, $(1,401.4) million and $776.5 million, respec-
tively. These investing activities were primarily net purchases of
investment securities during 2002 and 2001, and principally net
proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities
during 2000. Total cash (used in) provided by operating, invest-
ing and financing activities was $(50.8) million, $31.2 million
and $31.8 million during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Material Commitments. Ambac has made no commitments
for material capital expenditures within the next twelve months.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In the ordinary course of business, Ambac, through its affiliates,
manages a variety of risks, principally credit, market, liquidity,
operational and legal. These risks are identified, measured and
monitored through a variety of control mechanisms, which are
in place at different levels throughout the organization.

Credit Risk. Ambac is exposed to credit risk in various capacities
including as an issuer of financial guarantees, as counterparty to
derivative and other financial contracts and as a holder of
investment securities. Ambac's Portfolio Risk Management
Committee (“PRMC”) employs various procedures and controls
to monitor and manage credit risk. The PRMC is comprised of
senior risk professionals and senior management of Ambac. Its
purview is enterprise-wide and its focus is on risk limitsand mea-
surement, concentration and correlation of risk, and the attribu-
tion of economic and regulatory capital in a portfolio context.

All financial guarantees and structured credit derivatives
issued are subject to a formal underwriting process. Various fac-
tors affecting the credit worthiness of the underlying obligation
are evaluated during the underwriting process. Senior credit
personnel approve all transactions prior to issuing a financial
guarantee. Subsequent to issuance of a financial guarantee,
Ambac periodically performs reviews of exposures according to
a schedule based on the risk profile of the guaranteed obliga-
tions. Proactive credit remediation can help secure rights and
remedies which mitigate losses in the event of default.

Ambac manages credit risk associated with its investment
portfolio through adherence to specific investment guidelines.
These guidelines establish limits based upon single risk concen-
tration limits and minimum credit rating standards. Addition-
ally, senior credit personnel monitor the portfolio on a
continuous basis. Credit risk relating to derivative positions
(other than structured credit derivatives discussed below) pri-
marily concern counterparty default. Counterparty default
exposure is mitigated through the use of industry standard col-
lateral posting agreements. For counterparties subject to such



collateral posting agreements, collateral is posted when a deriv-
ative counterparty’s credit exposure exceeds contractual limits.

Market Risk. Market risk represents the potential for losses that
may result from changes in the value of a financial instrument
as a result of changes in market conditions. The primary market
risks that would impact the value of Ambac’s financial instru-
ments are interest rate risk, basis risk (e.g., taxable interest rates
relative to tax-exempt interest rates, discussed below) and
credit spread risk. Below we discuss each of these risks and the
specific types of financial instruments impacted. Senior man-
agers in Ambac's Risk Analysis and Reporting group are respon-
sible for monitoring risk limits and applying risk measurement
methodologies. The estimation of potential losses arising from
adverse changes in market conditions is a key element in man-
aging market risk. Ambac utilizes various systems, models and
stress test scenarios to monitor and manage market risk. This
process includes frequent analyses of both parallel and non-
parallel shifts in the yield curve, “Value-at-Risk” (“VaR") and
changes in credit spreads. These models include estimates, made
by management, which utilize current and historical market
information. The valuation results from these models could dif-
fer materially from amounts that would actually be realized
in the market.

Financial instruments that may be adversely affected by
changes in interest rates consist primarily of investment secu-
rities, investment agreement liabilities, debentures, and certain
derivative contracts (primarily interest rate swaps and futures)
used for hedging purposes. The following table summarizes the
estimated change in fair value (based primarily on the valuation
models discussed above) on the net balance of Ambac’s invest-
ment securities, investment agreement liabilities, debentures
and derivative hedges, assuming immediate changes in interest
rates at specified levels at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

(Dollars in Millions) Estimated
Estimated Net ~ Change in Net
Change in Interest Rates Fair Value Fair Value
2002:
300 basis point rise $4,386 $(1,116)
200 basis point rise 4,773 (729)
100 basis point rise 5,141 (361)
Base scenario 5,502 -
100 basis point decline 5,837 335
200 basis point decline 6,143 641
300 basis point decline 6,419 917
2001:
300 basis point rise $3,616 $(1,075)
200 basis point rise 3,987 (704)
100 basis point rise 4,344 (347)
Base scenario 4,691 -
100 basis point decline 5,063 372
200 basis point decline 5,426 735
300 basis point decline 5,780 1,089

Ambac, through its affiliate Ambac Financial Services, L.P., is a
provider of interest rate swaps to states, municipalities and their
authorities and other entities in connection with their financ-
ings. Ambac Financial Services manages its business with the
goal of being market neutral to changes in overall interest rates,
while seeking to profit from retaining some basis risk. Ambac’s
municipal interest rate swap portfolio may be adversely affected
by changes in basis. If actual or projected tax-exempt interest
rates change in relation to taxable interest rates, Ambac will
experience a mark-to-market gain or loss. Most municipal inter-
est rate swaps transacted by Ambac Financial Services contain
provisions that are designed to protect Ambac against certain
forms of tax reform, thus mitigating its basis risk. The estima-
tion of potential losses arising from adverse changes in market
relationships, known as VaR, is a key element in management’s
monitoring of basis risk for the municipal interest rate swap
portfolio. Ambac has developed a VaR methodology to estimate
potential losses over a specified holding period and based on
certain probabilistic assessments. Ambac’s methodology esti-
mates VaR using a 300-day historical “look back” period. This
means that changes in market values are simulated using mar-
ket inputs from the past 300 days. For the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and 2001, Ambac's VaR, for its interest rate swap
portfolio, calculated at a ninety-nine percent confidence level,
averaged approximately $0.7 million and $0.9 million, respec-
tively. Ambac’s VaR ranged from a high of $1.5 million to a low
of $0.3 million in 2002, and from a high of $1.9 million to a low
of $0.4 million in 2001. Ambac supplements its VaR methodol-
ogy, which is a good risk management tool in normal markets,
by performing rigorous stress testing to measure the potential
for losses in abnormally volatile markets. The stress tests include
(i) parallel and non-parallel shifts in the yield curve and (ii)
immediate changes in normal basis relationships, such as those
between taxable and tax-exempt markets.

Financial instruments that may be adversely affected by
changes in credit spreads include Ambac’s outstanding struc-
tured credit derivative contracts. Ambac, through its affiliate
Ambac Credit Products, enters into structured credit derivative
contracts. These contracts require Ambac Credit Products to
make payments upon the occurrence of certain defined credit
events relating to an underlying obligation (generally a fixed
income obligation). If credit spreads of the underlying obliga-
tions change, the market value of the related structured credit
derivative changes. As such, Ambac Credit Products could expe-
rience mark-to-market gains or losses. Market liquidity could
also impact valuations. Changes in credit spreads are generally
caused by changes in the market's perception of the credit qual-
ity of the underlying obligations. Ambac Credit Product’s struc-
tures its contracts with partial hedges from various financial
institutions or with first loss protection. Such structuring miti-
gates Ambac Credit Product’s risk of loss and reduces the price
volatility of these financial instruments. Personnel in Ambac’s
Structured Finance Surveillance group monitor credit spread
risk. Additionally, management models the potential impact of
credit spread changes on the value of its contracts. The follow-
ing table summarizes the estimated change in fair value (based
primarily on the valuation models discussed above) on the net
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balance of Ambac’s net structured credit derivative position
assuming immediate changes in credit spreads at specified lev-
els at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

(Dollars in Millions)

Estimated Net Estimated
Change in Credit Spreads Fair Value Gain/(Loss)
2002:
75 basis point widening $(60) $(29)
50 basis point widening (50) (19)
25 basis point widening (41) (10)
Base scenario (31) -
25 basis point narrowing (28) 3
50 basis point narrowing (24) 7
75 basis point narrowing (22) 9
2001:
75 basis point widening $(26) $(18)
50 basis point widening (19) (11)
25 basis point widening (13) (5)
Base scenario (8) -
25 basis point narrowing (7) 1
50 basis point narrowing (5) 3
75 basis point narrowing (3) 5

Other financial instruments that may be adversely affected
by changes in credit spreads include certain total return swap
contracts, which are entered into by Ambac through its affiliate,
Ambac Capital Services. These contracts require Ambac Capital
Services to pay a specified spread in excess of LIBOR in exchange
for receiving the total return of an underlying fixed income
obligation over a specified period of time. If credit spreads of the
underlying obligations change, the market value of the related
total return swaps changes and Ambac Capital Services could
experience mark-to-market gains or losses. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, the estimated unrealized losses for Ambac’s
total return swap portfolio for a 25 basis point and 50 basis
point widening of credit spreads were $7.3 million and $14.0
million, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2002 the
estimated unrealized gains for Ambac’s total return swap port-
folio for a 25 basis point and 50 basis point narrowing were $7.2
million and $11.1 million, respectively.

Liquidity Risk. Liquidity risk relates to the possible inability to
satisfy contractual obligations when due. This risk is present in
financial guarantee contracts, structured credit derivatives,
investment agreements, interest rate swaps and futures con-
tracts. Ambac Assurance manages its liquidity risk by maintain-
ing a comprehensive daily analysis of projected cash flows.
Additionally, Ambac Assurance maintains a minimum level of
cash and short-term investments at all times. Ambac Credit
Products manage the liquidity risk inherent in the structured
credit derivative portfolio by holding cash and short-term
investments and closely matching the dates that derivative pay-
ments are made and received. The investment agreement busi-
ness manages liquidity risk by matching the maturity schedules
of its invested assets, including hedges, with the maturity sched-
ules of its investment agreement liabilities. Additionally, Ambac’s
policy is to maintain a minimum level of cash and short-term
assets equivalent to a specified percentage of its investment
agreement liabilities outstanding. Ambac Financial Services
maintains cash and short-term investments, closely matches the
dates swap payments are made and received, and limits the
amount of risk hedged with futures contracts. See additional
discussion in “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section.

Operational Risk. Operational risk relates to the potential for
loss caused by a breakdown in information, communication
and settlement systems. Ambac mitigates operational risk by
maintaining systems (and system backup) and procedures to
monitor transactions and positions, documentation and confir-
mation of transactions, and compliance with regulations.

Legal Risk. Legal risks attendant to Ambac’s businesses include
uncertainty with respect to the enforceability of the obligations
insured by Ambac Assurance and the security therefore, as well
as uncertainty with respect to the enforceability of the obliga-
tions of Ambac’s counterparties, including contractual provi-
sions intended to reduce exposure by providing for the
offsetting or netting of mutual obligations. Ambac seeks to
remove or minimize such uncertainties through continuous
consultation with internal and external legal advisers to analyze
and understand the nature of legal risk, to improve documen-
tation and to strengthen transaction structure.



Report on Management’s Responsibilities

The management of Ambac Financial Group, Inc. is responsible
for the integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial
statements and all other financial information presented in this
Annual Report and for assuring that such information fairly
presents the consolidated financial position and operating
results of Ambac Financial Group, Inc. The accompanying con-
solidated financial statements have been prepared in confor-
mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America using management’s best estimates
and judgment. The financial information presented elsewhere in
this Annual Report is consistent with that in the consolidated
financial statements.

Ambac Financial Group, Inc. maintains a system of internal
accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded against loss or unauthorized use
and that the financial records are reliable for use in preparing
financial statements and maintaining accountability of assets.
Qualified and professional financial personnel maintain and
monitor these internal controls on a continuous basis. The con-
cept of reasonable assurance is based on the recognition that
the cost of a system of internal control should not exceed the
related benefits.

Ambac Financial Group, Inc’s consolidated financial state-
ments have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent auditors,
whose audits were made in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and included

areview of internal accounting controls to the extent necessary
to express an opinion on the fairness of the consolidated finan-
cial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, comprised
solely of outside directors, meets regularly with financial and
risk management, the independent auditors and the internal
auditors to review the work and procedures of each. The inde-
pendent auditors and the internal auditors have free access to
the Audit Committee, without the presence of management, to
discuss the results of their work and their considerations of
Ambac and its subsidiaries and the quality of Ambac Financial
Group, Inc's financial reporting. The Board of Directors, upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, appoints the inde-
pendent auditors, subject to stockholder approval.

e

Phillip B. Lassiter
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

-—\RG\N\M ém&dﬂ/

Inomas J. LanaoliTo
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

January 21, 2003

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ambac Financial Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets of Ambac Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related Consolidated
Statements of Operations, Stockholders’ Equity and Cash Flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of Ambac Financial Group, Inc’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi-
cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Ambac Financial Group, Inc. and sub-
sidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

KPMme P

KPMG LLP
New York, New York

January 21, 2003



Consolidated Balance Sheets

Ambac Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Amounts) December 31, 2002 2001
ASSETS:
Investments:
Fixed income securities, at fair value
(amortized cost of $11,133,313 in 2002 and $8,355,596 in 2001) $11,597,623 $ 8,469,157
Fixed income securities pledged as collateral, at fair value
(amortized cost of $537,711 in 2002 and $1,393,193 in 2001) 543,572 1,401,528
Short-term investments, at cost (approximates fair value) 395,761 415,002
Other, at fair value 2,354 2,163
Total investments 12,539,310 10,287,850
Cash 25,816 76,580
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 260,818 11,200
Receivable for investment agreements 169 4,101
Receivable for securities sold 6,936 8,922
Investment income due and accrued 142,406 157,408
Reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses 4,842 1,021
Prepaid reinsurance 296,126 267,655
Deferred acquisition costs 174,055 163,477
Loans 843,809 901,194
Derivative product assets 1,010,081 383,959
Other assets 51,170 76,176
Total assets $15,355,538 $12,339,543
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Liabilities:
Unearned premiums $ 2,128,847 $ 1,780,272
Losses and loss adjustment expense reserve 172,137 151,114
Ceded reinsurance balances payable 16,930 10,146
Obligations under investment and payment agreements 6,434,497 4,089,777
Obligations under investment repurchase agreements 848,358 1,422,151
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 132,235 425,000
Deferred income taxes 185,641 123,077
Current income taxes 44,807 98,145
Debentures 616,715 619,315
Accrued interest payable 81,252 84,225
Derivative product liabilities 836,146 314,583
Other liabilities 154,640 175,135
Payable for securities purchased 78,154 62,915
Total liabilities 11,730,359 9,355,855
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share; authorized shares—
4,000,000; issued and outstanding shares—none - -
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; authorized shares—
200,000,000 at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001,
issued shares—106,211,467 at December 31, 2002 and 106,020,537 at
December 31, 2001 1,062 1,060
Additional paid-in capital 550,289 538,135
Accumulated other comprehensive income 265,427 62,476
Retained earnings 2,820,281 2,403,473
Common stock held in treasury at cost, 220,876 shares at
December 31, 2002 and 436,488 at December 31, 2001 (11,880) (21,456)
Total stockholders’ equity 3,625,179 2,983,688
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $15,355,538 $12,339,543

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Statements of Operations

Ambac Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Dollars in Thousands Except Share Amounts)  Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
REVENUES:
Financial Guarantee:
Gross premiums written $ 904,032 $683,296 $483,082
Ceded premiums written (113,542) (95,534) (80,789)
Net premiums written $ 790,490 $587,762 $402,293
Net premiums earned $ 471,534 $378,734 $311,276
Other credit enhancement fees 28,775 21,661 12,157
Net premiums earned and other credit enhancement fees 500,309 400,395 323,433
Net investment income 297,297 267,847 241,047
Net realized investment gains 40,918 2,124 681
Net unrealized losses on credit derivative contracts (27,877) (3,588) (4,111)
Other income 5,531 5,180 4,371
Financial Services:
Interest from investment and payment agreements 255,007 249,903 303,165
Other revenue 30,550 37,770 42,513
Net realized investment losses (134,097) (3,026) (9,110)
Net unrealized losses on derivative hedge contracts (839) - -
Corporate:
Net investment income 3,537 3,426 2,137
Other revenue - 901 179
Net realized investment gains (losses) 1,482 (564) 8
Total revenues 971,818 960,368 904,313
EXPENSES:
Financial Guarantee:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 26,700 20,000 15,000
Underwriting and operating expenses 76,548 67,989 55,235
Financial Services:
Interest from investment and payment agreements 231,304 235,448 283,003
Other expenses 22,182 21815 24,805
Interest 43,724 40,442 37,477
Corporate 7,170 5947 6,669
Total expenses 407,628 391,641 422,189
Income before income taxes 564,190 568,727 482,124
Provision for income taxes 131,596 135,821 115,952
Net income $ 432,594 $432,906 $366,172
Net income per share:
Basic $4.08 $4.10 $3.49
Diluted $3.97 $3.97 $3.41
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 105,951,603 105,705,957 105,031,473
Diluted 109,066,046 108,948,133 107,415,430

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Ambac Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Dollars in Thousands) ~ Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
RETAINED EARNINGS:
Balance at January 1 $2,403,473 $2,035,209 $1,713,446
Net income 432,594  $432,594 432906  $432906 366,172 $366,172
Dividends declared—common stock (40,251) (35,937) (32,213)
Exercise of stock options 24,465 (28,705) (12,196)
Balance at December 31 $2,820,281 $2,403,473 $2,035,209
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS):
Balance at January 1 $ 62476 $ 45154 $ (187,540
Unrealized gains on securities, $339,039,
$39,542, and $373,291,
pre-tax in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively @ 214,943 23,643 234,178
Cumulative effect of accounting change - (880) —
Loss on derivative hedges (14,171) (4,371) —
Foreign currency gain (loss) 2,179 (1,070) (1,484)
Other comprehensive income 202,951 202,951 17,322 17,322 232,694 232,694
Total comprehensive income $635,545 $450,228 $598,866
Balance at December 31 $ 265,427 $ 62476 $ 45154
PREFERRED STOCK:
Balance at January 1 and December 31 $ - $ - $ -
COMMON STOCK:
Balance at January 1 $ 1,060 $ 1,060 $ 707
Issuance of stock 2 - -
Stock split effected as dividend - - 353
Balance at December 31 $ 1,062 $ 1,060 $ 1,060
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL:
Balance at January 1 $ 538,135 $ 533,558 $ 525012
Exercise of stock options 16,320 13,045 8,899
Issuance of stock 4,287 - -
Capital issuance costs (8,453) (8,468) —
Stock split effected as dividend - - (353)
Balance at December 31 $ 550,289 $ 538,135 $ 533,558
COMMON STOCK HELD IN TREASURY AT COST:
Balance at January 1 $ (21,456) $ (18,867) $ (33,175)
Cost of shares acquired (41,101) (40,876) (23,618)
Shares issued under equity plans 50,677 38,287 37,926
Balance at December 31 $ (11,880) $ (21,456) $ (18,867)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AT DECEMBER 31  $3,625,179 $2,983,688 $2,596,114
(M Disclosure of reclassification amount:
Unrealized holding gains arising during period $ 154,065 $ 25817 $ 230,985
Less: reclassification adjustment for net (losses)
gains included in net income (60,878) 2174 (3,193)
Net unrealized gains on securities $ 214,943 $ 23,643 $ 234,178

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Ambac Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Dollars in Thousands) ~ Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 432,594 $ 432,906 $ 366,172
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,466 3479 3614
Amortization of bond premium and discount 8,872 (15916) (12,972)
Current income taxes (53,338) 72,517 797
Deferred income taxes (52,110) 4,991 24,300
Deferred acquisition costs (10,578) (10,053) (18,100)
Unearned premiums, net 320,104 208,931 90,587
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 17,202 18,739 10,379
Ceded reinsurance balances payable 6,784 (746) (4,136)
Investment income due and accrued 15,002 (26,716) (2,024)
Accrued interest payable (2,973) (6,350) (567)
Net realized investment losses 91,697 1,466 8,421
Net unrealized losses on credit derivative contracts and derivative
hedge contracts 28,716 3,588 4111
Other, net 50 (15,005) 10,746
Net cash provided by operating activities 805,488 671,831 481,328
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales of bonds 3,380,488 2,243,276 1,636,904
Proceeds from matured bonds 2,204,670 2,538,173 1,843,482
Purchases of bonds (7,588,477) (6,497,633) (2,502,176)
Change in short-term investments 19,241 (161,483) (32,623)
Securities purchased under agreements to resell (249,618) 244,586 (152,786)
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (292,637) 425,000 -
Loans 57,385 (205,943) (9,763)
Other, net (37,456) 12,580 (6,553)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (2,506,404) (1,401,444) 776,485
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid (40,251) (35,937) (32,213)
Proceeds from issuance of investment agreements 3,585,538 3,044,900 1,637,935
Payments for investment agreement draws (2,143,557) (2,423,516) (2,855,766)
Proceeds from issuance of debentures - 193,700 -
Payment agreements 243,009 175 9,763
Payment for buyback of debentures - (7,500) —
Capital issuance costs (8,452) (8,468) —
Issuance of common stock 4,289 - -
Purchases of treasury stock (41,101) (40,876) (23,618)
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 50,677 38,287 37,926
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,650,152 760,765 (1,225,973)
NET CASH FLOW (50,764) 31,152 31,840
Cash and cash pledged as collateral at January 1 76,580 45,428 13,588
Cash and cash pledged as collateral at December 31 $ 25816 $ 76,580 $ 45428
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes $ 159,500 $ 45268 $ 82400
Interest expense on debt $ 48,260 $ 44,632 $ 34304
Interest expense on investment agreements $ 218,195 $ 231,498 $ 286,589

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

1 BACKGROUND

Ambac Financial Group, Inc. is a holding company whose sub-
sidiaries provide financial guarantees and financial services to
clients in both the public and private sectors around the world.
Ambac’s principal operating subsidiary, Ambac Assurance Cor-
poration, a leading provider of financial guarantees for public
finance and structured finance obligations, has earned triple-A
ratings, the highest ratings available from Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc., Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch Inc., and
Rating and Investment Information, Inc. Ambac’s Financial Ser-
vices segment provides financial and investment products
including investment agreements, interest rate swaps, funding
conduits, investment advisory and cash management services,
principally to its clients which include municipalities and other
public entities, school districts, health care organizations and
asset-backed issuers.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ambac
and subsidiaries have been prepared on the basis of accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP"). The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lia-
bilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could dif-
fer from those estimates. The significant accounting policies of
Ambac are described below:

Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of Ambac and its subsidiaries. All significant inter-
company balances have been eliminated.

Investments: Ambac’s investment portfolio is accounted for on
a trade-date basis and consists primarily of investments in fixed
income securities that are considered available-for-sale and are
carried at fair value. Fair value is based primarily on quotes
obtained from independent market sources. When quotes are
not available, valuation models are used to estimate fair value.
These models include estimates, made by management, which
utilize current market information. The valuation results from
these models could differ materially from amounts that would
actually be realized in the market. Short-term investments are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value. Unrealized gains
and losses, net of deferred income taxes, are included as a com-
ponent of “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)”
in stockholders’ equity and are computed using amortized cost
as the basis. If management believes that an unrealized loss is

“other than temporary,” the carrying value of the investment is
reduced and a realized investment loss is recorded in the Con-
solidated Statement of Operations. For purposes of computing
amortized cost, premiums and discounts are accounted for
using the interest method. For bonds purchased at a price below
par value, discounts are accreted over the remaining term of the
securities. For bonds purchased at a price above par value that
have call features, premiums are amortized to the most likely
call dates as determined by management. For premium bonds
that do not have call features, such premiums are amortized
over the remaining terms of the securities. Premiums and dis-
counts on mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities are
adjusted for the effects of actual and anticipated prepayments.
Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are deter-
mined on the basis of specific identification.

Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell and
Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase: Securities
purchased under agreements to resell are collateralized invest-
ment transactions, and are recorded at their contracted resale
amounts, plus accrued interest. Ambac takes possession of the
collateral underlying those agreements and monitors its market
value on a daily basis and, when necessary, requires prompt
transfer of additional collateral to reflect current market value.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are collateral-
ized financing transactions, and are recorded at their contracted
resale amounts, plus accrued interest. Ambac nets securities
purchased under agreements to resell and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase that are executed with the same
counterparty under legally enforceable netting agreements
that meet the applicable netting criteria. At December 31, 2002
and 2001, collateral underlying securities purchased under
agreements to resell had an average credit rating of triple-A.
These agreements have a weighted average maturity of less
than 30 days.

Deferred Acquisition Costs: Certain financial guarantee costs
incurred, primarily related to the production of business, have
been deferred. These costs include direct and indirect expenses
related to underwriting, marketing and policy issuance, rating
agency fees and premium taxes, net of reinsurance ceding com-
missions. The deferred acquisition costs are being amortized
over the periods in which the related premiums are earned, and
such amortization amounted to $32,336, $28,203 and $22,472
for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Deferred acquisition
costs, net of such amortization, amounted to $10,578, $10,053
and $18,100 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.



Loans: Loans are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal
balances, net of any deferred fees and fair value hedge adjust-
ments. These fair value hedge adjustments are discussed further
in “Derivative Contracts used for Hedging Purposes” below.
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance.
Deferred fees are amortized to income over the contractual life
of the loan using the interest method or the straight-line
method if not materially different.

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve: The reserve
for losses and loss adjustment expenses consists of the active
credit reserve and case basis loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves. The active credit reserve is established based upon
probable debt service defaults from incurred losses, as a result
of credit deterioration. Reserve amounts are reasonably esti-
mated based on managements review of each credit. When
defaults occur, case basis credit loss reserves are established in
an amount that is sufficient to cover the present value of the
anticipated defaulted debt service payments over the expected
period of default and estimated expenses associated with set-
tling the claims, less estimated recoveries under salvage or sub-
rogation rights. These reserves are discounted in accordance
with discount rates prescribed or permitted by state regulatory
authorities. During 2002, 2001 and 2000, paid losses were
$11,143, $2,595, and $4,622, respectively. All or parts of case
basis loss reserves are allocated from any active credit reserves
available. During 2002, 2001 and 2000, salvage amounts
received were $553, $1,333 and $0, respectively.

Management believes that the reserves for losses and loss
adjustment expenses are adequate to cover the ultimate net
cost of claims, but the reserves are necessarily based on esti-
mates and there can be no assurance that the ultimate liability
will not exceed such estimates.

Obligations under Investment and Payment Agreements
and Investment Repurchase Agreements: Obligations under
investment and payment agreements and investment repur-
chase agreements are recorded as liabilities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at the face value of the agreement. The carrying
value of these obligations is adjusted for draws paid and inter-
est credited to the account as well as any fair value hedge
adjustments. These fair value hedge adjustments are discussed
further in “Derivative Contracts used for Hedging Purposes”
below. Unsettled agreements are accrued on a trade-date basis
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at the time of commitment.
Interest expense is computed based upon daily outstanding set-
tled liability balances at rates and periods specified in the agree-
ments. Net interest income relating to investment and payment
agreements and investment repurchase agreements is included
as a component of Financial Services revenue.

Net Premiums Earned: Up-front insurance premiums written
are received for an entire bond issue. A bond issue may contain
several maturities. The premium is allocated to each bond matu-
rity proportionally, based on total principal amount guaranteed
and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of each
maturity. Installment insurance premiums written are recog-
nized over each installment period, generally one year or less.
When an issue insured by Ambac Assurance has been refunded
or called, the remaining unrecognized premium (net of refund-
ing credits, if any) is recognized at that time.

Financial Services Revenue: Ambac's Financial Services other
revenues includes the following products:

Interest rate swaps and total return swaps—Ambac provides
interest rate swaps principally to states, municipalities and
municipal authorities in connection with their financings. Ambac
also enters into total return swaps with various financial institu-
tions. All interest rate swaps and total return swap revenues are
accounted for as “Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Pur-
poses,” which is discussed in the Derivatives section below.

Investment advisory and cash management—Ambac provides
investment advisory and administrative services for money
market funds that are primarily offered to qualified participants
including school districts, health care service providers and
municipalities. Cash management services include the distribu-
tion of money market funds, as well as the brokering of short-
term fixed income securities trades on behalf of Ambac clients.
Fees from investment advisory and cash management services
are based on percentages of the average daily net assets of the
money market funds serviced as well as a broker mark-up on
short-term fixed income securities trades. Fees from investment
advisory and cash management services are recognized when
earned, consistent with the accrual basis of accounting.

Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation of furniture
and fixtures and electronic data processing equipment is
charged over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets,
ranging from three to five years, using the straight-line method.
Amortization of leasehold improvements is charged over the
lesser of ten years or the remaining term of the operating leases,
ranging from four to ten years, using the straight-line method.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

Postretirement and Postemployment Benefits: Ambac pro-
vides various postretirement and postemployment benefits,
including pension, and health and life benefits covering sub-
stantially all employees who meet certain age and service
requirements. Ambac accounts for these benefits under the
accrual method of accounting. Amounts related to the defined
benefit pension plan and postretirement health benefits are
charged based on actuarial determinations.

Foreign Currency: Financial statement accounts expressed in
foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars in accordance
with FAS Statement 52, “Foreign Currency Translation” (“SFAS
52"). Under SFAS 52, functional currency assets and liabilities
are translated into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect at
the balance sheet dates and the related translation adjustments
are recorded as a separate component of comprehensive
income, net of any related taxes. Functional currencies are gen-
erally the currencies of the local operating environment. Income
statement accounts expressed in functional currencies are
translated using average exchange rates. Foreign currency
transaction gains and losses, arising primarily from short-term
investment securities denominated in foreign currencies, are
reflected in net income. The Consolidated Statements of Oper-
ationsinclude pre-tax gains (losses) from such foreign exchange
items of $1,485, $(3,389) and $(3,748) for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Income Taxes: Ambac files a consolidated Federal income tax
return with its subsidiaries. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to dif-
ferences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in the period that includes the
enactment date.

Stock Compensation Plans: In 1997, Ambac adopted the
Ambac 1997 Equity Plan. Under this plan, awards are granted to
eligible employees of Ambac in the form of non-qualified stock
options or other stock-based awards. Ambac accounts for its
incentive stock options and stock-based awards under FAS
Statement 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”
(“SFAS 123"). SFAS 123 permits a company to choose either the
fair value based method of accounting as defined in the State-
ment or the intrinsic value based method of accounting as pre-
scribed by APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (“APB 25), for its stock-based compensation plans.

Ambac has elected to account for its plans using the intrinsic
value based method for all periods presented. Accordingly, since
the fair value of the options at grant date equals the exercise
price, no compensation cost has been recognized for its fixed
stock option plan. Had compensation cost for Ambac’s stock-
based compensation plan been determined consistent with the
fair value based method of FAS 123, Ambac’s net income, earn-
ings per share and earnings per diluted share for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, would have been reduced
to the pro-forma amounts indicated below:

2002 2001 2000

Net Income:
As reported $432,594  $432906 $366,172
Compensation expense,

net of tax $ 12,599 $ 13596 $ 8,591
Pro-forma $419,995 $419310  $357,581
Earnings per share:
As reported $4.08 $4.10 $3.49
Pro-forma $3.96 $3.97 $3.40
Earnings per diluted share:
As reported $3.97 $3.97 $3.41
Pro-forma $3.85 $3.85 $3.33

Derivative Contracts: In June 1998 the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards (SFAS) 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instru-
ments and Certain Hedging Activities.” In June 2000 the FASB
issued SFAS 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments
and Certain Hedging Activities, an amendment of SFAS 133"
SFAS 133 and SFAS 138 require all derivative instruments be
recorded on the balance sheet at their respective fair values.
SFAS 133 and SFAS 138 are effective for all fiscal quarters of all
fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2000; Ambac adopted
SFAS 133 and SFAS 138 on January 1, 2001. In accordance
with the transition provisions of SFAS 133, Ambac recorded
transition adjustment losses of $880 (net of related income tax)
in “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” and $408 (net
of related income tax) in net income in 2001.

All derivative instruments are recognized in the Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets as either assets or liabilities depending on
the rights or obligations under the contracts. All derivative
instruments are measured at estimated fair value. The fair val-
ues of derivative instruments are determined by broker quotes
or valuation models when broker quotes are not available. Val-
uation models include estimates, made by management, which
utilize current market information. The valuation results from
these models could differ materially from amounts that would
actually be realized in the market.



Derivative Contracts used for Hedging Purposes:  Interest
rate and currency swaps are utilized to hedge exposure to
changes in fair value of assets or liabilities resulting from
changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates, respec-
tively. These interest rate and currency swap hedges are referred
to as “fair value” hedges. Gains and losses on fair value hedges
are recognized currently in net income. The gain or loss on the
hedged asset or liability attributable to the hedged risk (interest
rate or foreign exchange risk) adjusts the carrying amount of
the hedged item and is recognized currently in netincome. If the
fair value hedge is fully effective, the gain or loss on the inter-
est rate or currency swap will exactly offset the gain or loss on
the hedged item. If exact offset is not achieved, the difference
would be the effect of hedge ineffectiveness, which is recog-
nized currently in net income. During 2002, the net amount of
hedge ineffectiveness, reported in “Net unrealized losses on
derivative hedge contracts” in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations was a loss of $1,020. In addition, a gain of $5,959
representing the time value component of the derivative
instruments was excluded from the assessment of hedge effec-
tiveness and reported in “Financial Services Interest Expense
from Investment and Payment Agreements” in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations. There was no hedge ineffectiveness
reported in net income for 2001 and 2000.

Interest rate swaps are also utilized to hedge the exposure
to variable interest rates. These interest rate swap hedges are
referred to as “cash flow” hedges. Gains and losses on interest
rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are reported in
“Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” in stockholders’
equity, until earnings are affected by the variability in cash flows
of the designated hedged item. During 2002, 2001 and 2000,
there was no hedge ineffectiveness reported in net income for
cash flow hedges.

Ambac discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when
it is determined that the derivative is no longer effective in off-
setting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged
item, the derivative expires, is sold or terminated. When hedge
accounting is discontinued because it is determined that the
derivative no longer qualifies as an effective fair value hedge,
Ambac continues to carry the derivative on the balance sheet at
its fair value, and no longer adjusts the hedged asset or liability
for changes in fair value. The adjustment of the carrying amount
of the hedged asset or liability is accounted for in the same
manner as other components of the carrying amount of that
asset or liability. When hedge accounting is discontinued
because it is determined that the derivative no longer qualifies
as an effective cash flow hedge, Ambac continues to carry the
derivative on the balance sheet at its fair value. The net deriva-
tive gain or loss related to a discontinued cash flow hedge (rec-
ognized during the period of hedge effectiveness) will continue

to be reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
and amortized into net income as a yield adjustment to the pre-
viously designated asset or liability. If the previously designated
asset or liability is sold or matures, the net derivative gain or loss
related to a discontinued cash flow hedge reported in Accumu-
lated Other Comprehensive Income will be reclassified into net
income immediately. All subsequent changes in fair values of
derivatives previously designated as cash flow hedges will be
recognized currently in net income. As of December 31, 2002,
$660 of deferred losses on derivative instruments reported in
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income are expected to be
reclassified to netincome during the next twelve months. Trans-
actions and events expected to occur over the next twelve
months that will necessitate reclassifying these derivative losses
include the repricing of a variable-rate investment agreement.

Derivative Contracts Classified as Held for Trading Pur-
poses: Ambac, through its subsidiary Ambac Financial Services,
L.P.,, provides interest rate swaps to states, municipalities and
their authorities, and other entities in connection with their
financings. Ambac Capital Services enters into total return
swaps with professional counterparties. Total return swaps are
only used for fixed income obligations which meet Ambac
Assurance’s credit underwriting criteria. Ambac, through its
subsidiary Ambac Credit Products LLC, enters into structured
credit derivative transactions with various financial institutions.
Ambac Financial Services’ interest rate swaps and futures con-
tracts, Ambac Capital Services' total return swaps and Ambac
Credit Products’ structured credit derivatives are classified as
held for trading purposes. These contracts are recorded on trade
date at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as a
component of “Financial Services Other Revenue” for interest
rate swaps, total return swaps and futures contracts in the
accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations. The fee
component of structured credit derivatives is reflected in
Other Credit Enhancement Fees in the accompanying Consoli-
dated Statements of Operations. The mark-to-market gain
or loss associated with credit spread changes on structured
credit derivatives is reflected in Net Unrealized Losses on
Credit Derivative Contracts in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

All derivative contracts used for hedging purposes and
classified as held for trading purposes are recorded on the Con-
solidated Balance Sheets on a gross basis; assets and liabilities
are netted by customer only when a legal right of set-off exists.
Gross asset and gross liability balances for all derivatives are
recorded as Derivative Product Assets or Derivative Product Lia-
bilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Special Purpose Entities: Ambac has transferred third-party
debt obligations to two special purpose entities. The business
purpose of these entities is to provide some of our financial
guarantee clients with funding for their debt obligations. These
special purpose entities meet the characteristics of Qualifying
Special Purpose Entities (“QSPEs”) in accordance with State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments
of Liabilities.” The QSPEs are not consolidated in Ambac’s con-
solidated financial statements. The QSPEs are legal entities that
are demonstrably distinct from Ambac. Ambac, its affiliates or
its agents cannot unilaterally dissolve the QSPEs. The QSPEs per-
mitted activities are limited to (i) purchasing assets from Ambac,
which are defined in the governing documents of the QSPEs,
(i) issuing Medium Term Notes (“MTNs”) to fund such purchase,
(i) executing derivative hedges and (iv) providing related
administrative services. The QSPEs hold only passive debt oblig-
ations transferred to it by Ambac, passive derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes and cash collected from
assets that it holds pending distribution to the MTN holders. The
QSPEs do not hold equity or other types of securities that would
allow for voting rights, significant influence or contractual
options such as the right to unconditionally put or call a finan-
cial instrument. The legal documents that established the QSPEs
or created the beneficial interests in the transferred assets do
not permit the sale or other disposal of the transferred financial
assets except for disposals in automatic response to the terms
of such financial assets (this would include only issuer call pro-
visions). These required disposals are outside the control of
Ambac, its affiliates and the QSPEs. Beneficial interest holders
do not have the rights to put their beneficial interest back to
the QSPEs.

As of December 31, 2002, there have been 12 individual
transactions processed through the QSPEs. In each case, Ambac
sells fixed income debt obligations issued by third parties to the
QSPEs. Ambac receives cash consideration for all assets trans-
ferred to the QSPEs. Ambac surrenders control over the trans-
ferred debt obligations. There are no agreements that entitle or
obligate Ambac to repurchase or redeem assets. The QSPEs are
structured as bankruptcy remote entities. Ambac management
believes that the assets transferred represent a true sale and the
assets held by the QSPEs are beyond the reach of Ambac and its
creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership. Legal coun-
sel has concurred with management's belief and has provided
Ambac true sale and non-substantive consolidation opinions.
The purchase by the QSPEs is financed through the issuance
of MTNs, which are collateralized by the purchased assets.
Derivative contracts may be used for hedging purposes only.
Derivative hedges are established at the time MTNs are issued to

purchase debt obligations. Ambac Assurance may issue a finan-
cial guarantee insurance policy on the assets sold, the MTNs
issued and the derivative contracts used. As of December 31,
2002, Ambac Assurance had financial guarantee insurance poli-
ciesissued for all assets owned, MTNs issued and derivative con-
tracts used by the QSPEs.

Ambac’s exposure under these financial guarantee insur-
ance policies is included in the disclosure in Note 12 “Guaran-
teesin Force” to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant
to the terms of Ambac Assurance’s insurance policy, insurance
premiums are paid to Ambac Assurance by the QSPEs and are
earned in a manner consistent with other insurance policies,
over the risk period. Any losses incurred would be included in
Ambac's Consolidated Statements of Operations. To date, no
losses have been recognized. Under the terms of an Administra-
tive Agency Agreement, Ambac provides some administrative
services, primarily collecting amounts due on the obligations
and making interest payments on the MTNs.

Assets sold to the QSPEs during 2002, 2001 and 2000 were
$350,000, $793,438 and $159,937, respectively. No gains or
losses were recognized on these sales. As of December 31, 2002,
the estimated fair value of financial assets, MTN liabilities and
derivative hedge liabilities were $1,347,287, $1,263,530 and
$90,958, respectively. When market quotes are not available,
estimated fair value is determined utilizing valuation models.
These models include estimates, made by Ambac management,
which utilize current market information. The valuation results
from these models could differ materially from amounts that
would actually be realized in the market. Ambac Assurance
received gross premiums written and other fees for issuing
financial guarantee policies on the assets, MTNs and derivative
contracts of $19,255, $23,682 and $3,204 for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Ambac
received fees for providing administrative services amounting
to $80, $302 and $180 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Net Income Per Share: Basic netincome per share is computed
by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted net
income per share is computed similar to basic net income per
share except that the weighted average shares outstanding are
increased to include 3,114,443, 3,242,176 and 2,383,957 addi-
tional shares from the assumed conversion of dilutive stock
options and restricted stock units at December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. The number of additional shares is cal-
culated by assuming that outstanding stock options were exer-
cised and that the proceeds from such exercises were used
to acquire shares of common stock at the average market price
during the year.



Accounting Standards: In December 2002, the FASB issued
FAS Statement 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS 148"). SFAS 148 amends
FAS Statement 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a volun-
tary change to the fair value based method of accounting for
stock-based compensation. SFAS148 also requires more promi-
nent disclosures in both annual and interim financial state-
ments about the method used and the effects of the
stock-based compensation. Ambac will adopt the fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based compensation,
using the prospective transition method, on January 1, 2003.
InJanuary 2003, the FASB issued FAS Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”). FIN 46
clarifies the consolidation rules to certain entities in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling
financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the
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entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support from other parties. FIN 46 requires variable
interest entities to be consolidated by their primary beneficia-
ries if the entities do not effectively disperse risks among par-
ties involved. Variable interest entities that effectively disperse
risks will not be consolidated. FIN 46 requires disclosures for
entities that have either a primary or significant variable inter-
est in a variable interest entity. Ambac is required to adopt the
consolidation provisions of FIN 46 on July 1, 2003. Based upon
Ambac’s current assessment, it does not have a significant
variable interest in any Variable Interest Entity affected by
this Interpretation.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made
to prior years' amounts to conform to the current year's
presentation.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investments in fixed income securities and short-term investments at December 31,

2002 and 2001 were as follows:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2002:
Fixed income securities:
Municipal obligations $ 4,587,545 $304,995 $ 4,638 $ 4,887,902
Corporate obligations 1,632,859 64,219 27,764 1,569,314
Foreign government obligations 108,071 12,562 33 120,600
U.S. government obligations 104,966 3,563 336 108,193
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
(includes U.S. government agency obligations) 4,799,872 115,601 3,859 4911,614
Short-term 395,761 — - 395,761
11,529,074 500,940 36,630 11,993,384
Fixed income securities pledged as collateral:
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
(includes U.S. government agency obligations) 537,711 6,260 399 543,572
Total $12,066,785 $507,200 $37,029 $12,536,956
2001:
Fixed income securities:
Municipal obligations $ 3,580,822 $133,745 $29,769 $ 3,684,798
Corporate obligations 1,342,990 30,245 42,646 1,330,589
Foreign government obligations 97,109 629 1,138 96,600
U.S. government obligations 75,703 3,750 1,199 78,254
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
(includes U.S. government agency obligations) 3,258,972 36,643 16,699 3,278,916
Short-term 415,002 — - 415,002
8,770,598 205,012 91,451 8,884,159
Fixed income securities pledged as collateral:
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
(includes U.S. government agency obligations) 1,393,193 12,417 4,082 1,401,528
Total $10,163,791 $217,429 $95,533  $10,285,687
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed income
securities and short-term investments at December 31, 2002, by
contractual maturity, were as follows:

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ 479,271 $ 482,008
Due after one year through five years 796,429 824,868
Due after five years through ten years 895,574 960,295
Due after ten years 4,557,928 4,814,599
6,729,202 7,081,770

Mortgage and asset-backed securities 5,337,583 5,455,186
$12,066,785  $12,536,956

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obliga-
tions with or without call or prepayment penalties.

There were no individual securities with material unreal-
ized losses as of December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Securities carried at $6,240 and $5,964 at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively, were deposited by Ambac with
governmental authorities or designated custodian banks as
required by laws affecting insurance companies.

Net investment income from the Financial Guarantee seg-
ment was comprised of the following:

2002 2001 2000
Fixed income securities $297,741  $260,302 $232,876
Short-term investments 2,831 9,996 9,904
Total investment income 300,572 270,298 242,780
Investment expense (3,275) (2,451) (1,733)
Net investment income $297,297  $267,847  $241,047

The Financial Guarantee segment had gross realized gains of
$48,529, $12,100 and $9,633 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, and gross realized losses of $7,611, $9,975 and $8,952 in
2002,2001 and 2000, respectively. Included in the above is a net
foreign exchange gain of $1,850 in 2002 and net foreign
exchange losses of $3,161 and $3,509 in 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, related to investments in certain high-grade foreign cur-
rency denominated securities.

The Financial Services segment had gross realized gains of
$10,313, $7,526 and $5,605 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, and gross realized losses of $144,520, $10,551 and
$14,715 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Included in 2002
realized losses was an impairment write-down of $139,731 to

the carrying value of asset-backed notes issued by National
Century Financial Enterprises, Inc. (“NCFE”). These notes, which
were rated triple-A until October 25, 2002, have defaulted and
NCFE filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bank-
ruptcy Code in November of 2002. The NCFE securities, which
are backed by health care receivables, have been written down
to approximately 20% of amortized cost, which represents
management’s best estimate of its future recovery based on
existing facts and circumstances. There were no impairment
write-downs during 2001 or 2000.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, Ambac held securities
purchased under agreements to resell. A portion of the securi-
ties obtained under these agreements were then pledged to
Ambac’s investment agreement counterparties (including
counterparties with agreements structured as investment
repurchase agreements). Such securities may not then be re-
pledged by the investment agreement counterparty to another
entity. In addition, Ambac sold securities subject to repurchase
in the normal course of business. Ambac’s counterparties under
these agreements have the right to pledge or rehypothecate the
securities, which were sold. The following table presents (i) the
carrying value of repurchase agreements, (i) the fair value of
securities underlying these agreements, and (iii) the fair value of
securities pledged by Ambac to investment agreement counter-
parties from securities purchased under agreements to resell at
December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Fair

Value of

Securities

Fair Pledged to

Value of Investment

Carrying Underlying Agreement

Value  Securities Counterparties

2002:
Securities purchased under

agreements to resell $260,818  $266,156 $100,679
Securities sold under

agreements to repurchase 132,235 136,890 n.a.
2001:
Securities purchased under

agreements to resell $ 11200 $ 11,566 $ -
Securities sold under

agreements to repurchase 425,000 446,410 n.a.




In conjunction with its investment agreement business, Ambac
routinely enters into security collateral swaps, whereby repur-
chase and reverse repurchase agreements are entered into
simultaneously with the same counterparty. Under the terms of
the security collateral swap agreements, both Ambac and the
counterparties have identical rights to pledge or rehypothecate
the securities sold or purchased under the agreement. Ambac
routinely pledges the securities obtained under the security
collateral swap agreements to investment agreement counter-
parties. Such securities may not then be repledged by the invest-
ment agreement counterparty to another entity. The fair value
of the underlying securities of all collateral swap arrangements
and the fair value of securities pledged to investment agreement
counterparties under security collateral swap arrangements at
December 31, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

Fair
Value of
Fair Securities
Value of Pledged to
Security Investment
Collateral Agreement
Swaps Counterparties
2002:
Securities purchased under agreements
to resell $395,370 $357,830
Securities sold under agreements
to repurchase 406,592 n.a.
2001:
Securities purchased under agreements
to resell $960,335 $738,195
Securities sold under agreements
to repurchase 955,118 n.a.

The fair value of securities sold by Ambac under agreements to
repurchase in the normal course of business and under security
collateral swap arrangements have been classified separately as
“Fixed income securities pledged as collateral” on the Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, Ambac had pledged
securities from its investment portfolio with a fair value of
$1,887,710 and $1,544,461 to investment agreement counter-
parties. Securities pledged to investment and payment agree-
ment counterparties are maintained in either a tri-party
collateral account with Ambac’s custodian bank or a segregated
trust account.

Under the terms of certain interest rate swap and struc-
tured credit derivative agreements, Ambac and its counterpar-
ties may be required to pledge collateral to the other resulting

from changes in the estimated fair value of those positions. The
following amounts were pledged under these agreements at
December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Pledged to Pledged by
Ambac Ambac
from its toits
Counterparties Counterparties
2002 2001 2002 2001
Cash $ 4,159 $34,200 $ - $ -
Securities 100,323 5127 155,943 -
4 LOANS

In the normal course of business, Ambac extended loans for the
following purposes:

Structured municipal transactions: Loans have been extended
to customers participating in certain structured municipal
transactions. The loans are collateralized with cash in amounts
adequate to repay the loan balance. Equipment and other assets
underlying the transactions serve as additional collateral for the
loans. Ambac acts as the payment custodian and holds the
funds posted as collateral. At December 31, 2002 and 2001 the
loan halances outstanding and collateral held were $687,901
and $695,426, respectively. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001
the interest rates on these loans ranged from 6.25% to 8.42%.
The range of expected final maturity dates of these loans was
May 2004 to January 2027 as of December 31, 2002.

Project financing: Ambac has purchased loans which finance an
infrastructure project which is secured by the assets underlying
that project. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the interest
rates on these loans ranged from 5.28% to 7.03%. The loan bal-
ances outstanding were $145,708 and $181,768 as of Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The range of expected
maturity dates of these loans was July 2014 to July 2019 as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Investment partnerships: Ambac has senior secured short-term
loans outstanding to certain investment partnerships which
invest in diversified portfolios of assets, primarily high-yield
debt obligations and bank loans. The loans are collateralized
with a first priority lien and security interest in the invested
assets. As of December 31, 2002, Ambac has an outstanding loan
balance of $10,200 with an interest rate of 2.44%. The expected
maturity of this loan was January 2003. As of December 31,
2001, Ambac had an outstanding loan balance of $24,000 with
interest rates ranging from 2.94% to 4.94%. The range of matu-
rity dates for these loans was January 2002 to March 2002.
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5 REINSURANCE

In the ordinary course of business, Ambac Assurance cedes exposures under various reinsurance contracts primarily designed to
minimize losses from large risks and to protect capital and surplus. The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned was

as follows:
Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Direct $ 871,070 $515,119 $632,413 $410,392 $440,111 $334,908
Assumed 32,962 41,486 50,883 38,825 42971 32,530
Ceded (113,542) (85,071) (95,534) (70,483) (80,789) (56,162)
Net premiums $ 790,490 $471,534 $587,762 $378,734 $402,293 $311,276

The reinsurance of risk does not relieve the ceding insurer of its
original liability to its policyholders. In the event that all or any
of the reinsurers are unable to meet their obligations to Ambac
Assurance under the existing reinsurance agreements, Ambac
Assurance would be liable for such defaulted amounts. To min-
imize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurers, Ambac
Assurance (i) evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers;
(ii) has collateral provisions in certain reinsurance contracts and
(iii) has certain termination triggers that can be exercised by
Ambac Assurance in the event of a rating downgrade of a rein-
surer. Additionally, as of December 31, 2002, Ambac Assurance
held bank letters of credit and collateral amounting to approx-
imately $135,681 from its reinsurers to cover liabilities ceded
under the aforementioned reinsurance contracts. For the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, reinsurance recover-
ies, which reduced loss and loss expenses incurred, amounted to
$1,334, $0 and $0, respectively. Reinsurance recoverables on
paid losses and loss adjustment expenses as of December 31,
2002 and 2001 were $242 and $0, respectively. As of December
31, 2002, prepaid reinsurance of approximately $181,378 was
associated with Ambac Assurance’s three largest reinsurers.
Ambac pledged cash and fixed income securities to foreign
insurers of $11,166 and $9,295 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, related to business assumed from those insurers.

6 LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE RESERVE
As discussed in note 2, Ambac Assurance’s liability for losses and
loss adjustment expenses consists of case basis and active credit
reserves. Following is a summary of the activity in the case basis
creditand active credit reserve accounts and the components of
the liability for loss and loss adjustment expense reserves:

2002 2001 2000
Case basis credit loss and loss
adjustment expense reserves:
Balance at January 1 $ 24384 $ 24466 $ 10,726
Less: reinsurance recoverables 1,021 1,011 -
Net Balance at January 1 23,363 23,455 10,726
Incurred related to:
Current year 36,365 38 16,000
Prior years (1,480) 1,131 1,350
Total incurred 34,885 1,169 17,350
Paid related to:
Current year 5,740 - -
Prior years 3,516 1,261 4,621
Total paid 9,256 1,261 4,621
Net balance at December 31 48,992 23,363 23,455
Plus reinsurance recoverables 4,600 1,021 1,011
Balance at December 31 53,592 24,384 24,466
Active credit reserve:
Balance at January 1 126,730 107,899 110,249
Net provision for losses 26,700 20,000 15,000
Transfers (to) from
case reserves (34,885) (1,169) (17,350)
Balance at December 31 118,545 126,730 107,899

Total $172,137  $151,114  $132,365




7 STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Ambac is authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of Common
Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of which 106,211,467 were
issued as of December 31, 2002. Ambac is also authorized to
issue 4,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per
share, none of which was issued and outstanding as of Decem-
ber 31, 2002.

Dividends declared per share amounted to $0.38, $0.34
and $0.31 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Board of Directors of Ambac has authorized the estab-
lishment of a stock repurchase program that permits the repur-
chase of up to 12,000,000 shares of Ambac’s Common Stock. As
of December 31, 2002, approximately 8,967,000 shares had
been repurchased under this program for an aggregate amount
of $265,927.

Stockholder Rights Plan:  Ambac adopted a Stockholder
Rights Plan under which stockholders received (after giving
effect to two stock splits since adoption of the Plan) one Right
for each three shares of Common Stock owned. Each Right enti-
tles the registered holder to purchase from Ambac one one-
hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, par value $0.01 per share, at a purchase price of $190 per
share. The Rights generally detach and become exercisable
when any person or group acquires 20% or more (or announces
a tender offer for 20% or more) of Ambac’s Common Stock, at
which time each Right (other than those held by the acquiring
company) will entitle the holder to receive that number of
shares of Common Stock of Ambac with a value of two times
the exercise price of the Right. If Ambac is acquired in a merger
or other business combination transaction in which Ambac is
not the surviving corporation or 50% or more of Ambac’s assets,
cash flow or earning power is sold or transferred, each Right will
entitle the holder to receive that number of shares of stock of
the acquiring company having a value equal to two times the
exercise price of the Right. The Rights, which expire on January
31, 2006, are redeemable in whole, but not in part, by action of
the Board of Directors of Ambac at a price of $0.01 per Right at
any time prior to their becoming exercisable.

8 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Ambac is responsible for leases on the rental of office space. The
lease agreements, which expire periodically through September
2019, contain provisions for scheduled periodic rent increases
and are accounted for as operating leases. An estimate of future
net minimum lease payments in each of the next five years end-
ing December 31, and the periods thereafter, is as follows:

Amount

2003 $ 5990
2004 7,529
2005 7,036
2006 6,882
2007 6,131
All later years 88,523
$122,091

Rent expense for the aforementioned leases amounted to
$6,377, $5,916 and $5,578 for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Total future rental receipts
under sublease agreements are estimated at $1,077.

9 INSURANCE REGULATORY RESTRICTIONS

Ambac Assurance is subject to insurance regulatory require-
ments of the States of Wisconsin and New York, and the other
jurisdictions in which it is licensed to conduct business.

Ambac Assurance’s ability to pay dividends is generally
restricted by law and subject to approval by the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Wisconsin. Wiscon-
sin insurance law restricts the payment of dividends in any 12-
month period without regulatory approval to the lesser of (a)
10% of policyholders’ surplus as of the preceding December 31
and (b) the greater of (i) statutory net income for the calendar
year preceding the date of dividend, minus realized capital gains
for that calendar year and (ii) the aggregate of statutory net
income for three calendar years preceding the date of the divi-
dend, minus realized capital gains for those calendar years and
minus dividends paid or credited within the first two of the three
preceding calendar years. Based upon these restrictions, at
December 31, 2002, the maximum amount that will be available
during 2003 for payment of dividends by Ambac Assurance is
approximately $223,000. Ambac Assurance paid cash dividends
of $78,000, $68,000 and $59,800 on its common stock in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.
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The New York Financial Guarantee Insurance Law estab-
lishes single risk limits applicable to obligations insured by Ambac
Assurance. Such limits are specific to the type of insured obliga-
tion (for example, municipal or asset-backed). The limits compare
the insured net par outstanding and average annual debt service,
net of reinsurance and collateral, for a single risk to the insurer’s
qualified statutory capital, which is defined as the sum of the
insurer’s policyholders’ surplus and contingency reserves. As of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, Ambac Assurance and its sub-
sidiaries were in compliance with these regulatory requirements.

Ambac Assurance’s statutory financial statements are pre-
pared on the basis of accounting practices prescribed or per-
mitted by the Wisconsin Insurance Department. Effective
January 1, 2001, Wisconsin adopted the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners’ statutory accounting practices
(“NAIC SAP”) as a component of its prescribed accounting prac-
tices. The adoption of the NAIC SAP did not have a material
effect on Ambac Assurance’s statutory capital. Wisconsin's
accounting practice for changes to the contingency reserve dif-
fer from those practices of NAIC SAP. Under NAIC SAP, contri-
butions to and releases from the contingency reserve are
recorded via a direct charge or credit to surplus. Under the Wis-
consin Administrative Code, contributions to and release from
the contingency reserve are to be recorded through underwrit-
ing income. Ambac Assurance received permission of the Wis-
consin Insurance Commissioner to record contributions to and
release from the contingency reserve in accordance with NAIC
SAP, Statutory surplus is the same using each of these account-
ing practices. Statutory net income is higher than if Ambac
Assurance had reported the net contributions in accordance
with the Wisconsin Administrative Code by $169,015, $183,269
and $154,175 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Statutory capital and surplus was $2,227,438 and
$1,996,284 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Qual-
ified statutory capital was $3,736,336 and $3,261,935 at
December 31,2002 and 2001, respectively. Statutory netincome
for Ambac Assurance was $486,246, $394,559 and $381,328 for
2002,2001 and 2000, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus
differs from stockholders’ equity determined under GAAP prin-
cipally due to statutory accounting rules that treat loss reserves,
premiums earned, policy acquisition costs, and deferred income
taxes differently.

10 INCOME TAXES
Ambac’s provision for income taxes is comprised of the following:

2002 2001 2000

Current taxes $182,244 $123,036 $ 91,779
Deferred taxes (50,648) 12,785 24,173
$131,596  $135821  $115952

The total effect of income taxes on income and stockholders’
equity for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 was
as follows:

2002 2001
Total income taxes charged to income $131,596  $135,821
Income taxes charged (credited) to
stockholders’ equity:
Unrealized gains on investment securities 114,674 12,051
Exercise of stock options (16,320) (13,045)
Total charged (credited) to
stockholders’ equity 98,354 (994)
Total effect of income taxes $229,950 $134,827

The tax provisions in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations reflect effective tax rates differing from prevailing
Federal corporate income tax rates. The following is a reconciliation of these differences:

2002 % 2001 % 2000 %
Tax computed at statutory rate $197,467 35.0% $199,054 35.0% $168,743 35.0%
Reductions in expected tax resulting from:
Tax-exempt interest (63,211) (11.2) (59,644) (10.5) (50,479) (10.5)
Other, net (2,660) (0.5) (3,589) (0.6) (2,312) (0.4)
Income tax expense $131,596 23.3% $135,821 23.9% $115,952 24.1%




The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to signif-
icant portions of the deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are presented below:

The table below sets forth a reconciliation of the beginning
and ending projected benefit obligation, beginning and ending
balances of the fair value of plan assets, and the funded status
of the plan as of December 31, 2002 and 2001.

2002 2001
Deferred tax liabilities: 2002 2001
Contingency reserve $ 226,957 $ 163,957 Change in Projected Benefit Obligation:
Unrealized gains on bonds 147,334 32,659 Projected benefit obligation at
Deferred acquisition costs 60,110 56,783 beginning of year $14,360  $12,669
Unearned premiums and credit fees 55,404 57,419 Service cost 1,397 1,031
Investments 7,462 6,799 Interest cost 922 853
Other 7,198 7,148 Actuarial loss (gain) 1,605 (189)
Total deferred tax liabilities 504,465 324,765 Benefits paid (254) (254)
Deferred tax assets: Other - 250
Tax and loss bonds 191,371 128,371 Projected benefit obligation at end of year $18,030 $14,360
Loss reserves 40,536 42,904 Change in Plan Assets:
Compensation 29,674 26,703 Fair value of plan assets at
Investment impairment loss 48,906 - beginning of year $12,831  $11,957
Other 8,337 3710 Actual return on plan assets (1,556) (872)
Sub-total deferred tax assets 318,824 201,688 Company contributions 1,500 2,000
Valuation allowance - - Benefits paid (254) (254)
Total deferred tax assets 318,824 201,688 Fair value of plan assets at end of year $12,521 $12,831
Net deferred tax liabilities $(185,641) $(123,077) Funded status $(5,509)  $(1,529)
Unrecognized loss (gain) 5,512 1,132
Ambac believes that no valuation allowance is necessary in con- Unrecognized prior service cost (249) (379)
nection with the deferred tax assets. Unrecognized net transition asset - -
Pension liability included in other liabilities $ (246) $ (776)

11 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pensions: Ambac has a defined benefit pension plan covering
substantially all employees of Ambac. The benefits are based on
years of service and the employee’s highest salary during five
consecutive years of employment within the last ten years of
employment. Ambac’s funding policy is to contribute annually
the maximum amount that can be deducted for Federal income
tax purposes. Contributions are intended to provide not only for
benefits attributed to service-to-date, but also for those
expected to be earned in the future.

Net pension costs for 2002, 2001 and 2000 included the fol-
lowing components:

2002 2001 2000

Service cost $ 1,397 $ 1,031 $ 892
Interest cost on expected

benefit obligation 992 853 829

Expected return on plan assets (1,289) (1,286) (1,056)

Amortization of unrecognized

transition asset - - -
Amortization of prior service cost (131) (151) (151)
Recognized net actuarial

(gain) loss - (78) (12)

Net periodic pension cost $ 969 $ 369 $ 502




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

The discount rate used in the determination of the actuarial pre-
sent value for the projected benefit obligation was 6.5% and
7.0% for 2002 and 2001, respectively. The expected long-term
rate of return on assets was 8.75% and 9.25% for 2002 and
2001, respectively. The rate of increase in future compensation
levels used in determining the actuarial present value of the
projected benefit obligation was 4.5% for both 2002 and 2001.

Substantially all employees of Ambac are covered by a
defined contribution plan (the “Savings Incentive Plan”), for
which contributions and costs are determined as 6% of each eli-
gible employee’s eligible base salary, plus a matching company
contribution of 50% on contributions up to 6% of base salary
made by eligible employees to the Savings Incentive Plan. The
total cost of the Savings Incentive Plan was $2,565, $3,037 and
$2,471 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Annual Incentive Program: Ambac has an annual incentive
program that provides for awards to key officers and employees
based upon predetermined criteria. The cost of the program for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 amounted
to $33,481, $27,823 and $22,725, respectively.

Postretirement Health Care and Other Benefits: Ambac pro-
vides certain medical and life insurance benefits for retired
employees and eligible dependents. All plans are contributory.
None of the plans are currently funded.

Postretirement benefits expense was $119, $175 and $358
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The unfunded accumu-
lated postretirement benefit obligation was $961 and the
related accrued postretirement liability was $2,425 as of
December 31, 2002.

The assumed health care cost trend rates range from 10.0%
in 2003, decreasing ratably to 6.0% in 2009. Increasing the
assumed health care cost trend rate by one percentage point in
each future year would increase the accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation at December 31, 2002 by $175 and the
2002 benefit expense by $55. The discount rate used to measure
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and 2002
expense was 6.5%.

12 GUARANTEES IN FORCE

The par amount of financial guarantees outstanding, net of
reinsurance, was $379,211,000 and $318,043,000 at December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 31, 2002 and
2001, the guarantee portfolio was diversified by type of guar-
anteed bond as shown in the following table:

Net Par Amount Outstanding
(Dollars in Millions) 2002 2001
Public Finance:

Lease and tax-backed revenue $ 60,118 $ 52,102
General obligation 41,359 39,664
Utility revenue 33,289 29,513
Health care revenue 20,675 19,003
Transportation revenue 15,218 13,000
Higher education 14,138 11,854
Housing revenue 8,345 7,476
Student loans 7,629 7,249
Other 5,723 5,103
Total Public Finance 206,494 184,964
Structured Finance:
Mortgage-backed and home equity 49,262 42,723
Asset-backed and conduits 25,977 20,687
Investor-owned utilities 14,285 11,642
Pooled debt obligations®) 9,178 7,068
Other 6,290 6,612
Total Structured Finance 104,992 88,732
International Finance:

Pooled debt obligations® 45,697 27,206
Asset-backed and conduits 9,232 6,185
Mortgage-backed and home equity 4,828 2,602
Investor-owned and public utilities 3,680 2,878
Sovereign/sub-sovereign 1,916 1,299
Other 2,372 4177
Total International Finance 67,725 44,347
$379,211 $318,043

(@) Pooled debt obligations include $43,701 and $26,123 of structured credit
derivatives at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the International Finance
guaranteed portfolio is shown in the following table by location
of risk:

Net Par Amount Outstanding

(Dollars in Millions) 2002 2001
Germany $10,556 $ 5804
United Kingdom 9,289 6,531
Australia 2,486 1,623
Japan 2,393 1,167
France 1,001 1,155
Mexico 668 654
Internationally diversified 36,454 23,312
Other international 4,878 4,101
Total International Finance $67,725 $44,347




Internationally diversified includes pooled debt obligations.
Such obligations represent pools of geographically diversified
exposures which includes components of domestic exposure.

Direct financial guarantees in force (principal and interest)
was $632,194,000 and $542,458,000 at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Net financial guarantees in force (after giv-
ing effect to reinsurance) was $557,422,000 and $476,190,000
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In the United States, California and New York were the
states with the highest aggregate net par amounts in force,
accounting for 8.8% and 5.6% of the total at December 31,
2002. No other state accounted for more than five percent. The
highest single insured risk represented less than 1% of aggre-
gate net par amount outstanding.

13 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following fair value amounts were determined by using
independent market information when available, and valuation
models when market quotes were not available. In cases where
specific market quotes are unavailable, interpreting market data
and estimating market values require considerable judgment by
management. Accordingly, the estimates presented are not nec-
essarily indicative of the amount Ambac could realize in a cur-
rent market exchange.

The following methods and assumptions were used to esti-
mate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Investments: The fair values of fixed income investments are
based primarily on quoted market prices received from a nation-
ally recognized pricing service or dealer quotes. When quotes
are not available, fair values are estimated based upon internal
valuation models.

Short-term investments and cash: The fair values of short-
term investments and cash are assumed to approximate amor-
tized cost.

Other: The fair value of other investments, primarily mutual
funds, are based on quoted market prices received from a
nationally recognized pricing service.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell: The fair
value of securities purchased under agreements to resell is
assumed to approximate carrying value.

Investment income due and accrued: The fair value of
investment income due and accrued is assumed to approximate
carrying value.

Loans: The fair values of loans extended for structured munic-
ipal transactions, project financings and investment partner-
ships are assumed to approximate carrying value.

Derivative contracts used for hedging purposes: The fair
values of cash flow hedges and fair value hedges (interest rate
and currency swaps), as defined in Note 2, are based on quoted
dealer prices, current settlement values, or pricing models.

Derivative contracts held for trading purposes: The fair val-
ues of interest rate swaps, total return swaps and structured
credit derivative transactions, as discussed in Note 2, are based
on quoted dealer prices, current settlement values, or valua-
tion models.

Obligations under investment, repurchase and payment
agreements: The fair value of the liability for investment agree-
ments and repurchase agreements is estimated based upon
internal valuation models. The fair value of payment agree-
ments is assumed to approximate carrying value.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase: The fair
value of securities sold under agreements to repurchase is
assumed to approximate carrying value.

Debentures: The fair value of the debentures is based on
quoted market prices.

Accrued interest payable: The fair value of accrued interest
payable is assumed to approximate carrying value.

Liability for net financial guarantees written: The fair value
of the liability for those financial guarantees written is based on
the estimated cost to reinsure those exposures at current mar-
ket rates, which amount consists of the current unearned pre-
mium reserve, less an estimated ceding commission thereon.

Other financial guarantee insurance policies have been
written on an installment basis, where the future premiums to
be received by Ambac are determined based on the outstanding
exposure at the time the premiums are due. The fair value of
Ambac Assurance’s liability under its installment premium poli-
cies is measured using the present value of estimated future
installment premiums, less an estimated ceding commission.
The estimate of the amounts and timing of the future install-
ment premiums is based on contractual premium rates, debt
service schedules and expected run-off scenarios. This measure
is used as an estimate of the cost to reinsure Ambac Assurance’s
liability under these policies.
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The carrying amount and estimated fair value of financial instruments are presented below:

As of December 31, 2002 2001
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

(Dollars in Millions) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets:
Fixed income securities $11,598 $11,598 $8,469 $8,469
Fixed income securities pledged as collateral 544 544 1,402 1,402
Short-term investments 396 396 415 415
Other Investments 2 2 2 2
Cash 26 26 77 77
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 261 261 1 1
Investment income due and accrued 142 142 157 157
Loans 844 844 901 889
Derivative product assets:
Hedging purposes 118 118 12 12
Trading purposes 892 892 373 373
Financial liabilities:
Obligations under investment, repurchase and

payment agreements 7,283 7,617 5512 5,597
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 132 132 425 425
Debentures 617 681 619 651
Accrued interest payable 81 81 84 84
Derivative product liabilities:
Hedging purposes - - 3 3
Trading purposes 836 836 312 312
Liability for financial guarantees written:
Gross 2,128 1,490 1,780 1,246
Net of reinsurance 1,832 1,282 1,513 1,059
Gross installment premiums - 1,110 - 818
Net installment premiums - 940 — 691




14 LONG-TERM DEBT AND LINES OF CREDIT
The carrying value of long-term debt was as follows:

As of December 31, 2002 2001
9%9% Debentures, due 2011 $142,136 $144,757
7'2% Debentures, due 2023 74,579 74,558
7.00% Debentures, due 2051 200,000 200,000
7.08% Debentures, due 2098 200,000 200,000

$616,715 $619,315

The debentures due on August 1, 2011 were issued on August 8,
1991 in the principal amount of $150,000 and bear interest of
9%:%, payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year and are
non-callable. In July 2001, Ambac extinguished $7,500, thereby
reducing the principal amount of the debt to $142,500.

The debentures due on May 1, 2023 were issued on May 11,
1993 in the principal amount of $75,000 and bear interest of
7%, payable on May 1 and November 1 of each year and are
non-callable.

The debentures due on October 17, 2051 were issued on
October 18, 2001 in the principal amount of $200,000 and bear
interest of 7.00%, payable on March 31, June 30, September 30
and December 31 of each year. The debentures may not be
redeemed prior to October 17, 2006 and were sold at 100% of
their principal amount. On or after October 17, 2006, Ambac
may redeem the debentures, in whole at any time or in part from
time to time, at 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued
interest to the date of redemption.

The debentures due on March 31,2098 were issued on April
1, 1998 in the principal amount of $200,000 and bear interest
of 7.08%, payable on March 31, June 30, September 30 and
December 31 of each year. The debentures may not be redeemed
prior to March 31, 2003 and were sold at 100% of their princi-
pal amount. On or after March 31, 2003, Ambac may redeem the
debentures, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at
100% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest to the
date of redemption.

Ambac and Ambac Assurance have a revolving credit facil-
ity with six major international banks for $300,000, which
expires in July 2003 and provides a two-year term loan provi-
sion. The facility is available for general corporate purposes,
including the payment of claims. As of December 31, 2002 and
2001, no amounts were outstanding under this credit facility.
This facility’s financial covenants require that Ambac: (i) main-
tain as of the end of each fiscal quarter a debt to capital ratio of
not more than 30% and (ii) maintain at all times total stock-
holders’ equity equal to or greater than $1.75 hillion.

Ambac Assurance has a series of perpetual put options on
its own preferred stock. The counterparty to these put options
are trusts established by a major investment bank. The trusts
were created as a vehicle for providing capital support to Ambac
Assurance by allowing it to obtain immediate access to new
capital at its sole discretion at any time through the exercise of
the put option. If the put option were exercised, the preferred
stock holdings of Ambac Assurance would give investors the
rights of an equity investor in Ambac Assurance. Such rights are
subordinate to insurance claims, as well as to the general unse-
cured creditors of Ambac Assurance. If exercised, Ambac Assur-
ance would receive up to $800,000 in return for the issuance of
its own perpetual preferred stock, the proceeds of which may be
used for any purpose including the payment of claims. Dividend
payments on the preferred stock are cumulative only if Ambac
Assurance pays dividends on its common stock. Each trust is
restricted to holding high quality short-term commercial paper
investments to ensure that it can meet its obligations under the
put option. To fund these investments, each trust has issued its
own auction market perpetual preferred stock. Ambac Assur-
ance pays a floating put option fee. Each trust is rated AA/Aa2
by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s respectively.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

15 OBLIGATIONS UNDER INVESTMENT AGREEMENTS
AND PAYMENT AGREEMENTS

Obligations under investment agreements, including those
structured in the form of repurchase contracts, are recorded on
a trade-date basis. Certain obligations may be called at various
times prior to maturity at the option of the counterparty. As of
December 31, 2002, the interest rates on these agreements
ranged from 1.25% to 8.14% with an average yield of 4.45%. As
of December 31, 2001, the interest rates on these agreements
ranged from 2.00% to 8.14% with an average yield of 5.47%.
Obligations under investment agreements and investment
repurchase agreements, excluding fair value hedge adjust-
ments, were as follows:

As of December 31, 2002 2001
Settled $6,227,879 $4,785,899
Unsettled 169 4,101

$6,228,048 $4,790,000

Net payments due under settled investment agreements in each
of the next five years ending December 31, and the periods
thereafter, based on expected draw dates, are as follows:

Principal

Amount

2003 $1,575,150
2004 1,061,816
2005 415,068
2006 746,924
2007 638,338
All later years 1,790,583
$6,227,879

Obligations under payment agreements represent funds
received by Ambac from certain municipal customers. These
funds serve as collateral for loans extended by Ambac in con-
nection with certain structured municipal transactions. In con-
nection with these transactions, Ambac is obligated to make
periodic agreed upon payments. As of December 31, 2002 and
2001, the interest rates on these obligations ranged from 6.25%
10 8.42%. Net payments due under payment agreements in each
of the next five years ending December 31, and the periods
thereafter, based on contractual payment dates, are as follows:

Principal

Amount

2003 $ 15,702
2004 23,568
2005 17,200
2006 21,611
2007 23,425
All later years 586,395
$687,901

Ambac also has obligations under certain payment agreements
that represent funds received from various investors and used
by Ambac to purchase high credit quality fixed income munici-
pal investment securities. As of December 31, 2002, the interest
rates on these obligations ranged from 0.95% to 1.92%. The bal-
ance outstanding at December 31, 2002 was $250,534. These
payment agreements are directly secured by the related munic-
ipal investment securities. Under the terms of these payment
agreements the investors have the contractual right to redeem
their investment at any time, within five business days notice
to Ambac.



16 COMMON STOCK INCENTIVES

The Ambac 1997 Equity Plan (the “Equity Plan”) provides for the
granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock units, performance units and other awards that are valued
or determined by reference to the Common Stock. Stock options
awarded to employees are exercisable and expire as specified at
the time of grant. Such options do not have a per share exercise
price less than the fair market value of a share of Common Stock
on the date of grant or have a term in excess of ten years from
the date of the grant. Ambac also maintains the Ambac 1997

Non-Employee Directors Equity Plan, which provides awards of
stock options and restricted stock units to non-employee mem-
bers of the Ambac'’s Board of Directors. The number of options
and their exercise price, and the number of restricted stock units
awarded to each non-employee director under the Directors
Equity Plan are determined by formula. As of December 31,
2002, approximately 3,711,000 shares were available for future
grant under the Equity Plan and the Directors Equity Plan. A
summary of option activity is as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 6,218,869 $34.70 5,694,711 $27.86 5,490,716 $24.99
Granted 1,544,254 $59.01 1,763,615 $50.37 1,796,052 $32.57
Exercised (1,128,095) $23.58 (1,184,329) $25.52 (1,327,754) $20.87
Forfeited (116,779) $52.66 (55,128) $40.33 (264,303) $33.35
Outstanding at end of year 6,518,249 $42.06 6,218,869 $34.70 5,694,711 $27.86

Exercisable 4,151,277 3,786,156 3,051,448

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Number Average Weighted Number
Range of Outstanding at Remaining Average Exercisable at Weighted Average
Exercise Prices December 31, 2002 Contract Life Exercise Price December 31, 2002 Exercise Price
$13t0 30 1,239,909 1.7 $23.77 1,239,909 $23.77
$31to 47 2,051,611 3.5 $33.65 1,899,973 $33.83
$48 to 66 3,226,729 5.1 $54.44 1,011,395 $51.88
6,518,249 4,151,277

The weighted-average fair value (determined as of the date of
the grants) of options granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
$20.61 per share, $17.37 per share, and $11.78 per share,
respectively. The fair value of each option grant issued was esti-
mated as of the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model, with the following weighted-average
assumptions used for grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively: (i) dividend yield of 0.61%, 0.65% and 0.92%; (ii) expected
volatility of 31.9%, 32.7% and 30.3%; (iii) risk-free interest rates
of 4.2%, 4.8% and 6.5%; and (iv) expected lives of approxi-
mately five years.

17 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Ambac has two reportable segments, as follows: (1) Financial
Guarantee, which provides financial guarantees (including
structured credit derivatives) for public finance and structured
finance obligations; and (2) Financial Services, which provides
investment agreements, interest rate swaps, total return swaps,
funding conduits, and investment advisory and cash manage-
ment services.

Ambac’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different marketing
strategies, personnel skill sets and technology.

The accounting policies of the segments are described in
Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies.” Pursuant to insurance
and indemnity agreements, Ambac Assurance guarantees the
swap and investment agreement obligations of those financial
services subsidiaries. Intersegment revenues include the premi-
ums earned under those agreements. Such premiums are deter-
mined as if they were premiums to third parties, that is, at
current market prices.

Information provided below for “Corporate and Other”
relates to Ambac Financial Group, Inc. corporate activities. Cor-
porate and other revenue from unaffiliated customers consists
primarily of interest income. Intersegment revenues consist of
dividends received.
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The following table is a summary of the financial information by reportable segment as of and for the years ended December

31,2002, 2001 and 2000:

Financial Financial Corporate Intersegment Total
Guarantee Services and Other Eliminations Consolidated
2002:
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers $ 816,178 $ 150,621 $ 5019 $ - $ 971818
Intersegment 7,984 (4,477) 81,500 (85,007) —
Total revenues $ 824,162 $ 146,144 $ 86,519 $(85,007) $ 971818
Income before income taxes:
Unaffiliated customers $ 712,930 $ (102,865) $(45,875) $ - $ 564,190
Intersegment 8,920 (2,489) 80,192 (86,623) -
Total income before income taxes $ 721,850 $ (105,354) $ 34317 $(86,623) $ 564,190
Identifiable assets $7,049,290 $8,231,967 $ 74,281 $ - $15,355,538
2001:
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers $ 671,958 $ 284,647 $ 3,763 $ - $ 960,368
Intersegment 5,006 (3,882) 69,000 (70,124) -
Total revenues $ 676,964 $ 280,765 $ 72,763 $(70,124) $ 960,368
Income before income taxes:
Unaffiliated customers $ 583,969 $ 27,384 $(42,626) $ - $ 568,727
Intersegment 5,304 (3,933) 67,612 (68,983) -
Total income before income taxes $ 589,273 $ 23,451 $ 24,986 $(68,983) $ 568,727
Identifiable assets $5,960,900 $6,306,900 $ 71,743 $ - $12,339,543
2000:
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers $ 565,421 $ 336,568 $ 2324 $ - $ 904313
Intersegment 3,827 (3,259) 63,844 (64,412) -
Total revenues $ 569,248 $ 333,309 $ 66,168 $(64,412) $ 904,313
Income before income taxes:
Unaffiliated customers $ 495,186 $ 28,760 $(41,822) $ - $ 482,124
Intersegment 3,827 (3,201) 63,844 (64,470) —
Total income before income taxes $ 499,013 $ 25559 $ 22,022 $(64,470) $ 482,124
Identifiable assets $4,870,075 $5,193,747 $ 56,398 $ — $10,120,220
The following tables summarize gross premiums written and net 2002 2001 2000
premiums earned and other credit enhancement fees included Net premiums earned and other
in the Financial Guarantee segment, by location of risk for the credit enhancement fees:
years ended December 31, 2002 2001 and 2000: United States $382,409 $318480  $264,445
United Kingdom 19,287 11,043 7,138
2002 2001 2000 Japan 17,941 8,939 6,252
Gross premiums written: Mexico 7,720 7,540 7,461
United States $766,778  $535,725  $373,269 Australia 4,945 3,761 3,058
United Kingdom 38,495 40,650 19,325 Germany 4,808 2,092 1,052
Japan 22,033 12,204 7,655 France 1,174 1,116 1,133
Mexico 16,513 16,285 16,232 Internationally diversified 40,926 33,706 24,434
Australia 9,379 7,308 27,647 Other international 21,099 13,718 8,460
Germany 1,207 483 418 Total: $500,309  $400,395  $323,433
France 884 856 970
Internationally diversified 16,841 30615 14754 |nternationally diversified includes components of domestic
Other international 31,902 39,170 22,812 exposure.
Total: $904,032 $683,296  $483,082
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First Second Third Fourth Full Year

2002:
Gross premiums written $149,361 $195,683 $205,110 $353,878 $904,032
Net premiums written 129,812 170,978 178,256 311,444 790,490
Net premiums earned and other

credit enhancement fees 109,942 120,206 129,703 140,458 500,309
Financial guarantee net investment income 72,547 73,593 75,895 75,262 297,297
Financial services revenue, net 16,591 10,966 13,582 13,114 54,253
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 5,700 5,900 6,100 9,000 26,700
Financial guarantee underwriting and

operating expenses 18,561 18,603 18,467 20917 76,548
Financial services expenses 5,136 5,699 5,380 5967 22,182
Income before income taxes 155,381 158,942 177,796 72,071 564,190
Net income 116,952 119,761 131,691 64,190 432,594
Net income per share:

Basic 1.1 1.13 1.24 0.61 4.08

Diluted $1.07 $1.09 $1.21 $0.59 $3.97
2001:
Gross premiums written $109,667 $236,668 $152,918 $184,043 $683,296
Net premiums written 96,966 212,901 117,044 160,851 587,762
Net premiums earned and other

credit enhancement fees 89,769 98,407 103,895 108,324 400,395
Financial guarantee net investment income 64,476 65,058 67,318 70,995 267,847
Financial services revenue, net 14,459 11,767 10,231 15,768 52,225
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 4,600 4,800 5,100 5,500 20,000
Financial guarantee underwriting and

operating expenses 16,643 17,426 16,602 17,318 67,989
Financial services expenses 5,631 5973 5,023 5,188 21,815
Income before income taxes 128,871 140,146 144,322 155,388 568,727
Net income 97,515 107,637 111,008 116,746 432,906
Net income per share:

Basic 0.92 1.02 1.05 1.11 4.10

Diluted $0.90 $0.99 $1.02 $1.07 $3.97
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Managing Director,
Human Resources and
Employment Counsel

KEVIN J. DOYLE
Managing Director and
General Counsel

Directors and Officers

MICHAEL A. CALLEN * T %
President

Avalon Argus Associates
(Financial Consulting)

RENSO L. CAPORALI *
Retired Chairman & CEO
Grumman Corporation
(Defense and Aerospace)

SENIOR OFFICERS

Financial Insurance

CONSUMER
ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES

IAIN H. BRUCE
Managing Director

THOMAS J. ADAMS
Managing Director

PUBLIC FINANCE - EAST REGION
AND HOUSING

ROBERT G. SHOBACK
Managing Director

PUBLIC FINANCE - WEST REGION

KATHLEEN A. McDONOUGH
Managing Director

MARK A. SPINELLI
Managing Director

HEALTH CARE

STEVEN C. RENN
Managing Director

EXPEDITED UNDERWRITING

GERARD S. DURR
Managing Director

UTILITIES

TIMOTHY S. TRAVERS
Managing Director

EUROPE

JOHN W. UHLEIN 11l
Managing Director

IAN DIXON
Managing Director

CYNTHIA PARKER
Managing Director

DAVID W. WALLIS
Managing Director

ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES AND
CONDUITS

JAPAN, AUSTRALIA AND
EMERGING MARKETS

DOUGLAS C.RENFIELD-MILLER
Managing Director

DIANA N. ADAMS
Managing Director

JILL M. CONSIDINE * T

Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

The Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation

(Financial Services Industry)

RICHARD DULUDE " T

Retired Vice Chairman
Corning Incorporated
(Diversified Manufacturing)

JOHN H. BRYAN Il
Managing Director

NANCY S. FOX_
Managing Director

NICHOLAS G. GOUMAS
Managing Director

ANDREA R. MERENYI
Managing Director

RICK PERSAUD
Managing Director

STRUCTURED FINANCE
AND CREDIT DERIVATIVES

MICHAEL J. SCHOZER
Managing Director

SCOTT D. GORDON
Managing Director

DAVID NEMSCHOFF
Managing Director

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

WILLIAM T. McKINNON
Managing Director

ALESSANDRA V. D'IMPERIO
Managing Director

LEGAL

JEFFREY R. FRIED
Managing Director

NICOLA J. RYAN
Managing Director

Investment and
Financial Services Group

MANAGEMENT SERVICES

STEVEN L. DYMANT
Managing Director

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

EULOGIO (JOE) RAMOS
Managing Director and
Chief Investment Officer

RODNEY D. KUMASAKI
Managing Director

CADRE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

KEVIN J. BURKE
Chief Executive Officer

ROBERT J. GENADER

President and

Chief Operating Officer
Ambac Financial Group, Inc.

W. GRANT GREGORY * T ¥
Chairman

Gregory & Hoenemeyer, Inc.
(Merchant Banking)

LAURA S, UNGER * T ¥
Regulatory Expert
CNBC

(Media)

Portfolio Risk Assessment and
Internal Audit Group

PETER J. CAIN
Managing Director

DAVID A. MacDOUGALL
Managing Director

CATHLEEN J. MATANLE
Managing Director

NARAYAN NAIR
Managing Director
Internal Audit

ROBERT D. SELVAGGIO
Managing Director

Corporate

MAISIE CHANG
Managing Director
Rating Agencies/Reinsurance

ROBERT B. EISMAN
Financial Controller

ANNE G. GILL
Corporate Secretary

SUSAN OEHRIG
Corporate Marketing

KENNETH S. PLOTZKER
Managing Director and
Chief Information Officer

PETER R. POILLON
Investor Relations

ROBERT W. STARR
Managing Director and Treasurer



ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS:

OTHER LOCATIONS:

FORM 10-K

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS INVESTOR RELATIONS
DIVIDEND PAYING AGENT

STOCK LISTING

COMMON STOCK DATA

2002 Market Price

Dividends

High Low Close Per Share
63.85 55.05 59.07 $0.0900
7125 5719 67.20 $0.0900
68.87 49.86 53.89 $0.1000

65.45 4990 56.24 $0.1000









